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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Welcome to the

          3  Health Committee hearing. My name is Christine

          4  Quinn, I'm the Chair of the Health Committee. We've

          5  been joined by Council Member Mike McMahon from

          6  Staten Island, by Council Member Joel Rivera, the

          7  Majority Leader of the City Council from the Bronx.

          8  We were joined but he just stepped out and he'll be

          9  back in a second, by a member of the Health

         10  Committee from Manhattan Phil Reed, and we're

         11  expecting other members to arrive momentarily.

         12                 Today we're going to have the third

         13  hearing on Intro. 256, the Mayor Bloomberg's

         14  proposed Clean Indoor Air Act.

         15                 Today we're actually -- the first two

         16  hearings were on the bill as originally introduced

         17  by Mayor Bloomberg, today we're going to have a

         18  hearing on an amended version, 256-A.

         19                 Let me first just go through a little

         20  bit of the structure of today's hearing. If any of

         21  you had been to the other two hearings, you know

         22  they tend to have a little structure, and then go

         23  through the ground rules for the hearing and then go

         24  through brief summary of what the changes to 256-A,

         25  versus 256 are.
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          2                 We're going to have a series of five

          3  panels, the first two be the Health Commissioner Tom

          4  Frieden, and the Deputy Mayor for Economic

          5  Development, Dan Doctoroff. Then we're going to have

          6  a panel who is opposed to the bill, a panel who is

          7  for the bill, opposed, the Deputy Mayor, Health

          8  Commissioner, a con, a pro, a con, a pro, and then

          9  we'll open what we hope will be about 1:00, 1:30,

         10  give or take, the public hearing to people who have

         11  signed up on witness lists and are not already

         12  registered witnesses.

         13                 If you would like to testify, please

         14  sign one of the witness lists the Sergeants have.

         15  It's very important you note whether you're pro or

         16  con or you don't have a position. If you do not note

         17  a position on the bill, I will set those slips

         18  aside, those people will be called last.

         19                 If you're out of the room when your

         20  name is called, we will try to take you when you

         21  come back, we cannot make that commitment that you

         22  will be taken immediately, though, upon returning to

         23  the room, depending on the situation we might have

         24  to put you further down in the pile.

         25                 As with other hearings, the
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          2  witnesses, separate from the Administration, when

          3  they are testifying, all other witnesses will be

          4  timed on a three-minute clock to try to move the

          5  hearing along.

          6                 Also, the hearing, we're asking for

          7  no clapping, shouting, yelling. If you have signs,

          8  you can hold up eight and a half by 11 pieces of

          9  paper at chest level. If you put them over your head

         10  we'll ask you to put them down and we will take them

         11  away because you have stressed people's vision.

         12                 If people do not heed warnings, and

         13  you'll get, you know, one or two warnings about

         14  outbursts, et cetera, one, it will just take away

         15  from the time of your side, so less of your opinion

         16  will be heard, and then after a second warning the

         17  Sergeants-At-Arms will clear, will either ask the

         18  person who is outbursting so-to-speak to leave, or

         19  we will clear the chambers in their entirety, those

         20  scheduled witnesses will wait outside and we will

         21  call them one-by-one.

         22                 That said, I want to just go through

         23  a brief overview of the bill, the changes to the

         24  bill. In its entirety, 256 seeks to address the fact

         25  that in some workplaces in New York City, even
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          2  following the passage of the 1995 law, in some

          3  places, workplaces, smoking is still allowed.

          4                 256 seeks to make smoking in all

          5  workplaces illegal, which would make smoking in bars

          6  and the restaurants where smoking is still allowed

          7  illegal.

          8                 There are some changes that have been

          9  made. One, bars, legally defined bars would have the

         10  option of installing or building in their

         11  establishment separately ventilated smoking lounges

         12  for patrons. No food or beverage could be served or

         13  ordered in these rooms, these rooms could be -- when

         14  a staff person was going to go in and bus, clean up

         15  the empty glasses, et cetera, the room would have to

         16  be emptied out for 15 minutes.

         17                 This option for bars sunsets in three

         18  years, at which point the Council, where I will

         19  still, if re-elected, be here, as opposed to some

         20  other members who will term limit out before this

         21  time occurs, but sunsets in three years, at which

         22  point the Council will revisit, whether this is an

         23  exemption that was still necessary, was it

         24  necessary, has it been helpful, should it be

         25  renewed, should it not be renewed, should it be
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          2  changed.

          3                 Tobacco bars have been exempted and

          4  under this bill they have been grandparented in.

          5                 We believe that there are a small,

          6  maybe seven, maybe ten, establishments in the City

          7  which meet this definition. Those businesses will be

          8  allowed to continue. When the owners of those

          9  establishments seek to close their businesses, those

         10  businesses will cease to exist.

         11                 The registrations with the Department

         12  of Health, the ownership, et cetera, et cetera,

         13  cannot be transferred, those, whatever it is, seven

         14  to ten are, as we say grandparented in, then no more

         15  will open in the City.

         16                 Outdoor dining spaces. Twenty-five

         17  percent of outdoor dining spaces can be designated

         18  as smoking. They have to have very clear signage of

         19  what is the smoking, what is the non-smoking

         20  section. The smoking session has to be three feet

         21  away from the non-smoking section.

         22                 Owner/operated bars. This provision

         23  is included in the bill. One, because in the

         24  California law the California Legislature was silent

         25  on the issue of owner/operated bars, therefore many
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          2  establishments opened up in California where there

          3  were owners, where many staff were owning a half a

          4  share or a share of the bar. So, we thought to

          5  address this in the bill, one, to address the issue

          6  which occurred in California. Two, under the thought

          7  that there may be some establishments out there that

          8  are small or run by three or so or less owners that

          9  don't have staff and that therefore would not need

         10  the nexus of this bill, that the owner operated is

         11  defined, an owner in this provision of law would

         12  have to own at least 25 percent of the establishment

         13  and there can be no more than three owners.

         14                 Health care and day treatment

         15  facilities, obviously a nursing home or an assisted

         16  living facility where somebody lives, this bill does

         17  not seek to make it illegal for people to smoke in

         18  their homes. Those places that are facilities where

         19  people live can have smoking rooms where the

         20  residents can go and smoke.

         21                 Treatment facilities, the drug

         22  treatment facilities, things of that nature, where

         23  people are for six, eight, 12 hours a day, there

         24  will be a room where the patients can go and smoke

         25  during the day.
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          2                 Since this bill sought to protect

          3  employees from secondhand smoke, we did research on

          4  private clubs. We now know more about VFWs and Elks

          5  lodges than we ever thought we would on the Health

          6  Committee. Some private clubs, the Princeton Club,

          7  the Yale Club, et cetera, certainly have a lot of

          8  staff. Some Knights of Columbus, some Veterans of

          9  Foreign Wars, some American Legions have staff, some

         10  do not, some are exclusively run by the members. The

         11  member is the newest elk, is the bartender or the

         12  bouncer, et cetera. Those places where there are no

         13  employees will be allowed to have smoking.

         14                 Another change in this bill, the

         15  original draft of this bill banned hotels from

         16  having ashtrays in their lobbies or at their

         17  elevators outside of their room where somebody can

         18  smoke, the hotels will now be allowed to have ash

         19  trays in lobbies and right outside of the elevator.

         20                 So with that overview and those

         21  ground rules, I also want to say that we've been

         22  joined by Council Member Phil Reed of Manhattan, who

         23  is a Health Committee member, by Council Member

         24  Helen Sears of Queens, also a member of the Health

         25  Committee.

                                                            13

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 And with that I'll turn it over to

          3  our first two witnesses, the Health -- well, the

          4  Commissioner of the Department of Health and Mental

          5  Hygiene, Dr. Tom Frieden, and the Deputy Mayor for

          6  Economic Development, Dan Doctoroff. And there will

          7  be no vote on the bill today.

          8                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Good morning,

          9  Chairperson Quinn, Health Committee members, members

         10  of the City Council. I'm Dan Doctoroff, Deputy Mayor

         11  for Economic Development and Rebuilding.

         12                 On behalf of the Mayor, I want to

         13  thank you, the City Council, for recognizing the

         14  importance of reporting and passing this smoke-free

         15  workplace legislation.

         16                 I also want to apologize for the late

         17  start that we got this morning.

         18                 As you know, a number of arguments

         19  have been advanced for opposing anti-smoking

         20  workplace legislation, quality of life, freedom of

         21  choice, as well as the economic impact of passage of

         22  this bill on our overall economic activity in the

         23  City.

         24                 Given my job is to attempt to do

         25  everything we possibly can to advance the economic

                                                            14

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  prosperity of the City, I will simply address a

          3  third of those concerns, and they're of course

          4  especially important at a time when our economy is

          5  very fragile. And, so, when I first heard of this

          6  idea being advanced, naturally I was skeptical. My

          7  initial reaction was that in fact probably it would

          8  cause an adverse economic impact at a time when we

          9  could least afford it.

         10                 And, so, as a result, I commissioned

         11  with the Department of Health a series of studies to

         12  actually analyze in-depth the economic impact of

         13  this bill on the City, and I am very pleased to

         14  report that based on everything we've looked at, and

         15  I'll describe it in some detail, including surveys

         16  of restaurant and bar owners in California, which

         17  had passed similar legislation, surveys of tour

         18  operators focusing on international, international

         19  visitors to the City, and analyses of trends in

         20  other jurisdictions that had adopted similar

         21  legislation on their economies, specifically on the

         22  impact, on restaurants, on bars and the jobs that

         23  they create. We believe that in fact not only is

         24  there not an adverse economic impact, but in general

         25  what we expect to see perhaps after a brief period
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          2  of adjustment is a positive economic impact.

          3                 In California, which as you know

          4  enacted similar smoke-free workplace legislation in

          5  1995, tax receipts for eating and drinking

          6  established increased more rapidly after they became

          7  smoke-free than they had increased prior to that

          8  time.

          9                 Recent data indicates that even after

         10  the overall economic downturn, these gains

         11  persisted, that bar owners and employees find

         12  compliance with the law fairly easy, that patrons

         13  overwhelmingly and increasingly approve of the law,

         14  and, in fact, are more likely to visit a bar than

         15  they were prior to the enactment of the smoke-free

         16  workplace law.

         17                 Smoke-free legislation will not hurt

         18  businesses. In a ramble sample survey taken of Los

         19  Angeles and San Francisco bar owners, they reported

         20  that there was no negative impact on the customer

         21  base or on revenues.

         22                 More than two-thirds of restaurant

         23  owners reported no impact on the number of customers

         24  after going smoke-free. More importantly, 60 percent

         25  of the restaurant owners and managers reported no
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          2  impact on revenues with smoke-free legislation.

          3                 Only one in 20 restaurants claimed a

          4  decrease in customers and revenues over time, more

          5  than outweighed by the number who saw an increase.

          6                 This legislation that we're

          7  discussing today creates a level playing field that

          8  enables small and large businesses to compete under

          9  the same restrictions. This law applies to all.

         10  We're not trying to put anyone out of business. The

         11  bill tries to accommodate businesses that would be

         12  negatively impacted. Tobacco bars, which are

         13  basically cigar bars, were allowed a limited

         14  exception so that the very few existing bars would

         15  not be put out of business.

         16                 Remember, the prime objective of this

         17  legislation is to protect workers and their safety

         18  by creating a healthy smoke-free environment. Not

         19  allowing new tobacco bars is consistent with the

         20  overall concerns about worker safety.

         21                 The bill also accommodates

         22  owner/operated businesses, since they have no

         23  employees and pose no health risk to people other

         24  than the owner and those who choose to patronize

         25  such establishment.
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          2                 Moreover, the limited exception for

          3  promoting and sampling of tobacco product does not

          4  change the existing law that prohibits the giving

          5  away of tobacco product. Because the serving of food

          6  and drink at these functions can only be incidental

          7  and requires advance approved filing, this is

          8  clearly not an invitation for bars and restaurants

          9  or other facilities to have smoking rights.

         10                 In a time of fiscal concern we must

         11  make decisions that will positively impact our

         12  City's economy.

         13                 In 1995, it was predicted that the

         14  Smoke-Free Air Act would cost this City about 11,000

         15  jobs and the hospitality industry more than $500

         16  million.

         17                 In fact, it was just the reverse.

         18  Between 1993 and 1997 over 19,000 new restaurant

         19  jobs were created.

         20                 Less than one in five people in New

         21  York City smoke. Most successful business models

         22  generally try to capture the largest possible share.

         23  A survey completed earlier this year of New York

         24  City residents reveal that New Yorkers prefer

         25  smoke-free restaurants and bars. A Quinnipiac

                                                            18

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  University poll released in November of this year

          3  showed that nearly 90 percent of New Yorkers believe

          4  that secondhand smoke is harmful, and that the

          5  majority of New York City voters support a total ban

          6  on smoking in restaurants and bars.

          7                 This poll was taken after there had

          8  been public debate about the bill you are being

          9  asked to consider.

         10                 One interesting point in the survey

         11  was that support for smoke-free workplace

         12  legislation is strongest among minority voters.

         13                 Another criticism that has been

         14  raised is the notion that tourism will be

         15  significantly impacted due to international visitors

         16  reluctance to travel to smoke-free cities.

         17                 Floridians recently rejected the same

         18  argument by a 70 to 30 margin, but it bears some

         19  additional response here today. Japan just banned

         20  smoking outdoors, and Italy has also started taking

         21  steps toward becoming smoke-free. Norway is

         22  currently proposing banning smoking throughout the

         23  entire country.

         24                 These countries' actions leave the

         25  foreign tourism argument somewhat hollow.
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          2                 In addition, contrary to most

          3  people's expectations, the incidence of smoking

          4  among Europeans is actually substantially lower than

          5  it is here in America.

          6                 New York City is one of the principal

          7  tourist destinations in the world. We all know that

          8  tourism revenues are extremely vital to our economy.

          9  When the City Council passed the original smoking

         10  ban, it was also predicted that New York City's $14

         11  billion tourism industry would suffer. In fact, the

         12  exact opposite has occurred. Today tourism in this

         13  City is a $25 billion industry, employing many, many

         14  more people than before that legislation was passed.

         15                 A recent survey of international tour

         16  operators confirms that international visitors

         17  exhibit no signs of modifying travel plans based on

         18  smoking policies. In fact, not a single tour

         19  operator that we talked to indicated that they had

         20  ever seen a customer make a decision about where to

         21  visit based on a smoke-free environment or not.

         22                 This bill will not, with Intro. 256-A

         23  -- this bill will leave our City healthier, and

         24  also will lead other municipalities to enact

         25  smoke-free legislation. We've already seen that. We
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          2  will save lives and we will help the City's

          3  businesses to grow. Thank you, City Council members

          4  for your support in this historical, historic piece

          5  of legislation.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you, Deputy

          7  Mayor.

          8                 Just before we hear from the Health

          9  Commissioner, I want to say we've been joined by a

         10  member of the Health Committee, the Minority Leader

         11  of the City Council, James Oddo from Staten Island.

         12                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Thank you very

         13  much. And, again, apologies for our late start. I'll

         14  make it up by being even briefer in my remarks.

         15                 Chairwoman Quinn and members of the

         16  Council, I want to express my heartfelt thanks to

         17  you for your commitment to join Mayor Bloomberg and

         18  pass smoke-free workplace legislation.

         19                 Because of this legislation, which I

         20  hope that you will soon enact, we will not see as

         21  many heart attacks, we will not see as many cancers,

         22  we will not see as many people struggling to

         23  breathe, as a result of being exposed to secondhand

         24  smoke on the job.

         25                 What we will see are lives that are
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          2  lengthened and communities that are enriched by the

          3  continued presence of people who would otherwise

          4  have died prematurely, 10,000 of them, more than

          5  10,000 of them, over the life of this statute.

          6                 Please take a moment to think about

          7  these people, not as a number, but as human beings.

          8                 One of the great challenges of public

          9  health and public policy is to look behind the

         10  numbers and statistics to see the faces and lives of

         11  people, people whose lives will be lengthened and

         12  whose quality of life will be improved by this

         13  legislation.

         14                 You are doing the right thing,

         15  affirming that the right to breathe carcinogen-free

         16  air at work trumps the license to smoke. This will

         17  be a great legacy of this Council for future

         18  generations of New Yorkers.

         19                 With this law you are protecting more

         20  than 700,000 New York City workers, including more

         21  than 400,000 non-smoking New York City workers, one

         22  out of every seven, who today and every day inhale

         23  secondhand smoke all or most of the time while on

         24  the job.

         25                 More than two-thirds of these workers
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          2  are African-American, Latino or Asian. Workers of

          3  lower socioeconomic status are twice as likely to be

          4  exposed to secondhand smoke at work. These

          5  especially are the people's whose rights you will be

          6  voting to protect.

          7                 The current legislation is somewhat

          8  complex, but the concept is simple - no New York

          9  City worker will have to risk cancer, heart disease

         10  or lung disease from secondhand smoke just to hold a

         11  job.

         12                 Our City will be a healthier place to

         13  work and to live, you are taking the lead in

         14  encouraging other areas across the country to adopt

         15  similar legislation.

         16                 Thank you for taking a stand on the

         17  side of workers' rights, worker safety and health.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. I have

         19  a question, at this point one I think for each of

         20  you, and then we have two questions from other

         21  Council members.

         22                 Deputy Mayor, one of the concerns

         23  I've heard as this bill is discussed, and certainly

         24  compared to California, which is fair, and both

         25  sides have done that, is people have said, well, you
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          2  can't really compare the economic data. You can't

          3  look at the economic data, it's not useful because

          4  those are such strong economic times, versus

          5  unfortunately weaker economic times that we're in

          6  now. Based on what I heard you say, is it fair to

          7  say that even if you control so-to-speak for the

          8  rise in the economy that occurred because it

          9  occurred, that there was still not a negative impact

         10  on the establishments who were included in the

         11  California law; is that correct?

         12                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: That's

         13  exactly correct. It's a very good question. In fact,

         14  what we've tried to do is try and control the

         15  overall rising economic tie that existed in the

         16  municipalities that we looked at. And what we see is

         17  in fact the increases in business actually

         18  accelerated more than the increase in the economy

         19  would have led one to suspect.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: So that concern

         21  people have, you've actually looked at the data to

         22  try to make sure that it wasn't just a cyclical

         23  effect?

         24                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Absolutely.

         25  As I mentioned at the very beginning of my remarks,
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          2  my initial view, my knee-jerk reaction was that this

          3  actually would be harmful and so I've really pushed

          4  very hard, as the Commissioner knows, to ensure that

          5  at least I and members of my staff would be

          6  satisfied that in fact we weren't just witnessing a

          7  phenomenon of a rising economic period. So, no, I

          8  think we are very, very convinced that this will

          9  have a positive economic impact, and certainly not a

         10  negative one.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         12                 Commissioner, myself and the staff

         13  did a briefing this morning for Council members and

         14  their staff on the changes, and one yesterday that a

         15  few members and staff came to, and one question that

         16  came up, but I just want to get it on the record,

         17  the outdoor dining provision that would allow

         18  smoking in 25 percent. That would include sidewalks,

         19  rooftops, open air, non-roof covered establishments.

         20                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Right. The

         21  current statute allows smoking in 25 percent of

         22  outdoor areas, the intent of this statute is to

         23  continue to allow smoking in outdoor areas, those

         24  that do not have an enclosed roof or a ceiling of

         25  any kind.

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          3                 Next we're going to hear, have

          4  questions from a few members. Council Member Reed.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

          6                 A couple of areas that I've -- I

          7  don't want to go quite so far as to say it's to

          8  challenge the facts, but I just, several of us have

          9  been surprised.

         10                 Dr. Frieden, I'm not sure I

         11  understand. Could you sort of help me break down

         12  this 400,000 people that you say work in this

         13  industry, and whose lives will be saved?

         14                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Let me be very

         15  clear. We have been consistent from the beginning,

         16  and we remain consistent. This legislation, based on

         17  the best available data, will save more than 10,000

         18  lives. I've given to you, Council member, as well as

         19  the others, a detailed breakdown of that testament.

         20                 In addition, the numbers that I

         21  mentioned this morning relate to the number of

         22  workers who are exposed to secondhand smoke all or

         23  most of the time on the job.

         24                 This is a finding in our random digit

         25  dial, 10,000 respondent survey of New York City.

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  This is a survey that's large enough to have razor

          3  thin confidence limits. We're quite confident of the

          4  numbers there, of the people who say that they're

          5  exposed to secondhand smoke on the job, "all or most

          6  of the time," There are more than 700,000, including

          7  both smokers and non-smokers, and there are more

          8  than 400,000, 415,000 to be precise, non-smoking New

          9  York City workers. That's one out of every seven

         10  workers who report that they're exposed to

         11  secondhand smoke all or most of the time on the job.

         12  It varies somewhat by borough. It varies quite

         13  substantially by race ethnicity, and it varies quite

         14  substantially by socioeconomic status. So that

         15  poorer workers and minority

         16  African-American, Hispanic, and Asian workers are

         17  more likely than white workers to report exposure to

         18  secondhand smoke.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, I

         20  appreciate that. And nobody has challenged your

         21  consistency, but it doesn't mean that you haven't

         22  been consistently wrong.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: This is the first

         24  warning. There's going to be no clapping pro or con.

         25  Like I said, we'll clear the Chamber.

                                                            27

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: This bill speaks

          3  specifically to bars, and limited restaurants still

          4  have the ability to smoke in them; is that right?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: This bill's

          6  intent is to address all workplaces in New York

          7  City. That includes bars, which in addition to being

          8  gathering places are workplaces.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: What other

         10  workplaces would you say are affected by this that

         11  were not previously protected under our other

         12  smoking bans, prohibition?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Quite a few

         14  other workplaces are not currently smoke-free, that

         15  includes offices where less than, where three or

         16  fewer people are present, and all quote/unquote

         17  agree. It includes, as you mentioned, restaurants,

         18  those under 35, with 35 or fewer seats, the bar area

         19  of restaurants, and that bar area might snake around

         20  the room fairly large. So, there are actually a

         21  significant number of workplaces that are not

         22  currently covered that would be covered, and the

         23  intent of this is, again, to ensure that no worker

         24  in New York City has to choose between the risk of

         25  cancer and their paycheck.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Okay. Well, I'm

          3  certainly going to remember that the broadness of

          4  the Administration definition of terms, when it may

          5  be some other hearing, but I'm going to keep that in

          6  my mind for other hearings because that is a stretch

          7  if I've ever seen one. But, okay, fine.

          8                 This question is for both you and Mr.

          9  Doctoroff. We're talking about the economic impact

         10  of this. Have you estimated what it would cost a bar

         11  to build one of these smoking rooms in the bar? Have

         12  you estimated what that might cost?

         13                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: There are

         14  various estimates, that it depends significantly on

         15  the characteristics of the building in which the bar

         16  would be located. It depends significantly on the

         17  techniques that are used, so I can't give you an

         18  estimate on what it would cost.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: But seriously,

         20  Mr. Doctoroff, has anybody actually tried to come up

         21  with an average of what that would cost?

         22                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I'm not aware

         23  that anyone has, but I think that's only a portion

         24  of the puzzle here. You know, what we're really

         25  looking at is assuming people don't invest at all
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          2  what's the impact, in many ways kind of the worst

          3  case from an opponent's perspective, in our view, in

          4  that case still we think, perhaps after a short

          5  period of adjustment, that you'll see is more people

          6  coming to bars than would have been coming

          7  otherwise, because they are smoke-free.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I guess my

          9  concern is this, that as I've read this compromise

         10  bill, that it's really a fraudulent compromise

         11  because -- and no matter where you stand -- don't

         12  clap, because she's serious -- no matter how you

         13  come out on this bill, and I think a lot of us are

         14  trying to weigh a lot of different factors at this,

         15  the thing that I think has been more appalling to me

         16  is the fraudulence of this compromise. I haven't met

         17  anybody who has read through those regulations and

         18  realistically thinks anybody is going to be able to

         19  build a room in their bar. I don't care if it's a

         20  restaurant in a hotel chain that's got a lot of

         21  money, it's virtually impossible to meet up with

         22  those regulations.

         23                 So, I guess my question is three

         24  years from now, as we've written into this that

         25  we're going to revisit this, if the statistics and
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          2  everything show quite the opposite, if in fact

          3  10,000 lives haven't been saved, if in fact the

          4  economy has gone negative, does that mean that we

          5  could open up the dialogue about restoring the

          6  opportunity to smoke?

          7                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Absolutely. I

          8  think one of the most important things in public

          9  policy is to look at the data, to look at the

         10  information and adjust the course. I think there is

         11  essentially zero chance of that happening, but if it

         12  were, by all means, I think every responsible

         13  official and figure would think that we should

         14  reassess the situation.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And lastly Dr.

         16  -- Mr. Doctoroff, we're reading in the paper about

         17  Bear Stearns is moving and we've subsidized that to

         18  hundreds of millions of dollars, and I think, I

         19  haven't completely read the whole thing, but we're

         20  trying to get people to move downtown. I can't

         21  imagine these companies are not going to try to take

         22  advantage of that tax break. So, we spent a lot of

         23  money trying to keep business in this City, and even

         24  if we took and accepted the California model, we

         25  heard about a lot of people who struggled in
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          2  California for the first year of this bill, their

          3  business did plummet, and then it came back up. So,

          4  I'm curious, what is the Economic Development

          5  Corporation prepared to do to help the small

          6  business owner get past that period of time when

          7  business is going to go down?

          8                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: First of all,

          9  I'm not saying business will go down. There's

         10  always, when new things are enacted, a period of

         11  transition, but I think actually we probably will

         12  see ultimately a very quickly increase in business.

         13  I think in terms of, it's kind of pointless at this

         14  point to speculate as to what we would or would not

         15  do, given that our general view is that business is

         16  going to increase.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: But if we saw

         18  business go down, and you wouldn't offer these small

         19  businesses a tax break or some way to stay in

         20  business?

         21                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Well, don't

         22  forget, this is happening to everybody. That's the

         23  most important thing. So, you're in a competitive

         24  environment where the playing field is level, and we

         25  don't see any evidence that the end of the day, or
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          2  even in the shorter term, that everybody isn't

          3  overall going to be benefitted. But in terms of

          4  providing additional tax breaks or whatever, you

          5  know, we can certainly evaluate that at the point we

          6  see real economic harm, but I think we have to

          7  evaluate a lot of things when we saw real economic

          8  harm.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         11                 Council Member McMahon.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Thank you,

         13  Madam Chairwoman. Good morning, Mr. Deputy Mayor,

         14  good morning, Commissioner.

         15                 At our last hearing the former

         16  President, the former President of the Los Angeles

         17  City Council, who was serving when the bill was

         18  passed in California, testified, and he was an

         19  advocate for the bill, although he conceded that the

         20  traditional tavern, as we know it in New York, is

         21  not nearly as prevalent in Los Angeles as it is in

         22  New York, and I think that while most of us applaud

         23  the efforts to make smoke-free environments and to

         24  reduce the risk of secondhand smoke, we have an

         25  extremely great concern that this will have a
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          2  devastating economic impact on sort of the New York

          3  style traditional tavern, the neighborhood bar that

          4  sits on the street, sometimes mixed in with

          5  residential areas, I think you know what I'm driving

          6  at, the type of establishment I'm driving at.

          7                 In your financial analysis, Deputy

          8  Mayor, how much, what portion of your survey was

          9  dedicated to analyzing the impact on that industry?

         10                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Well, what we

         11  did was a survey of bar owners and restaurant owners

         12  in San Francisco, and we didn't break it down

         13  specifically in terms of their size or type of

         14  tavern, how comparable it was to what we may have

         15  here, but the overwhelming evidence among sort of

         16  everybody that we talked to was that despite their

         17  initial fears, those fears were not realized and

         18  that in fact what they had seen was in fact a

         19  positive impact on their overall business.

         20                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I think one of

         21  the most striking statistics that we found in

         22  looking at the experience in California was that not

         23  only did bar and restaurant revenues increase

         24  overall, but within that increase the market share

         25  of bar revenues, which had been declining steadily
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          2  for many years, reversed and began to increase.

          3                 What that tells me is, remember, four

          4  out of five New Yorkers, and three out of four

          5  Staten Island residents, don't smoke, and what that

          6  suggests to me, it's not proof, but what it suggests

          7  is that by making their environment smoke-free, the

          8  bars were recapturing a part of the demographic, a

          9  part of the population that had avoided them

         10  previously.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Well, my

         12  concern is that your analysis is really comparing

         13  apples to oranges, because I think we have here in

         14  this City quite a different type of operation if you

         15  will, or, you know, than in Los Angeles or San

         16  Francisco, as I know them from my visual

         17  observation, and as the President of the Los Angeles

         18  City Council conceded.

         19                 So, you mean in your analyses or

         20  studies you didn't look at the actual tavern

         21  industry here in New York and gauge the impact on

         22  that industry by studying the industry itself?

         23                 I mean, you only looked at Los

         24  Angeles and California but you didn't come back and

         25  study the survey or look at the tavern industry here
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          2  in New York; is that correct?

          3                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: No, no. What

          4  we looked at were, we interviewed restaurant and bar

          5  owners, some of whom would be very similar to what

          6  you'd find in New York. I think you'd make a mistake

          7  to assume that what we have here in New York is

          8  totally different from what they have in California.

          9                 They have, you know, neighborhood

         10  bars in California just like we do here. Maybe our

         11  portion of them is somewhat higher, but

         12  overwhelmingly among all type of restaurants and

         13  bars people thought that this was not a negative, in

         14  fact was a positive.

         15                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: If I can just

         16  add to that very briefly. Brookline in Boston,

         17  Massachusetts has been smoke-free. It's relatively

         18  similar, lots of taverns there, no negative impact,

         19  no increase in the bordering areas, and as a result,

         20  as you probably know, the City of Boston has

         21  recently decided, the day before yesterday, decided

         22  to go totally smoke-free. So, I think you can't say

         23  that the dynamic is very different in those

         24  neighborhoods than New York and they have not seen a

         25  negative impact.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: So, your

          3  economic impact studies and analyses did not

          4  actually survey the local industry, and engage -- I

          5  mean, I would have done interviews with the local

          6  tavern owners as well, that would not be a better

          7  model to know what the impact would be here in New

          8  York. I mean, you studied California but you didn't

          9  study New York?

         10                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Well, the

         11  reason you study California is they have experience,

         12  having passed total smoke-free legislation. So, you

         13  have an opportunity to analyze what was before and

         14  what came after.

         15                 If we were to talk to bar owners

         16  here, all we would know is their hopes, their

         17  expectations, but there is no hard data because the

         18  legislation hasn't passed yet.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: But wouldn't

         20  you want to know, for instance, how much of a local

         21  tavern's income comes from smokers? Or what

         22  percentage or what the impact would be on a local --

         23  I would want to know what the direct financial

         24  impact would be.

         25                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: But that
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          2  doesn't answer the question of what will happen in

          3  the event of the passage of legislation.

          4                 You know, if X percent of somebody's

          5  revenues come from smokers, and that goes down

          6  somewhat but it's outweighed, as we saw I think in

          7  other jurisdictions by more people coming to bars,

          8  spending actually more money in bars, when they go

          9  smoke-free, that is far better evidence than the

         10  hypothetical conjecture of bar owners here based on

         11  sort of an expectation as to what may happen.

         12                 So, I think where it's really

         13  happened, where you've got a before and after, you

         14  can quantify, you can ask people's opinion, you can

         15  see what happened with bar revenues after the

         16  passage of the bill, that's infinitely more powerful

         17  evidence than a guess.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Well, did you

         19  study, I mean the average tavern in New York, they

         20  operate at what type of profit margin, do you know?

         21  What percentage, do you know?

         22                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: No, but it's

         23  all over the -- I mean, it's a very, very wide

         24  range, depending on the size, depending upon the

         25  location, depending on how much they have to pay for
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          2  rent. It's very hard to make generalizations.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member,

          4  could you make this your last question, please?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay. Yes,

          6  thank you. My last question, just to shift gears for

          7  a moment. If the goal of the legislation is to give

          8  every smoker the right to work in a smoke-free

          9  environment, and we also have at the last hearing

         10  very compelling testimony from a gentleman who works

         11  in a cigar bar, why are existing cigar bars excluded

         12  from this bill? And if they are grandfathered in,

         13  why aren't existing taverns that so wish to be

         14  grandfathered in given the option to be

         15  grandfathered in? I don't know how you can say that

         16  that's not being inconsistent the way it is now.

         17                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I don't see

         18  any inconsistency at all. If you don't exempt cigar

         19  bars, they are completely put out of business. And

         20  they don't have an opportunity to compete with

         21  anybody else, they either exist or they don't.

         22                 Now, you can argue that they

         23  shouldn't be included, and, obviously, you know, a

         24  compromise has been struck, but I don't think

         25  they're comparable in any way because they will face
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          2  extinction if they are banned, smoking is banned in

          3  them, whereas in our view, with respect to the

          4  generic bar, our view is in fact they'll be helped.

          5  So, I think that's a very clear distinction.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: But I don't

          7  see the distinction, because a tavern owner wants to

          8  have that business and to run that business, you're

          9  saying you can't do that. Yet, the cigar bar owner,

         10  you're saying you can do that. The cigar bar can

         11  stop selling cigars and just sell alcohol. The

         12  gentleman who was in here testified very

         13  compellingly, and made a very passionate case that

         14  his work environment is not smoke-free; why is he

         15  not entitled to the same smoke-free environment that

         16  every other worker is entitled to? And if we are

         17  making an economic exception for the cigar bar, then

         18  why are we not making the same economic exception

         19  for the tavern owner who wishes to have one and can

         20  be grandfathered in?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: This is going to

         22  be the final question.

         23                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: The cigar bars

         24  primary business identity is the sale of tobacco

         25  products, and the same way that the tobacco retail
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          2  stores are exempted, because their primary business

          3  identity is the sale of tobacco products. But just

          4  as we would look at other issues in the future and

          5  reassess, perhaps this is a scenario which in the

          6  future we would reassess.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

          8  Sears.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

         10  Madam Chair.

         11                 Councilman McMahon asked the question

         12  that I was going to ask, but I would like to follow

         13  up on that for a moment.

         14                 I'm not too familiar with cigar bars,

         15  and I would doubt very much if they are in the

         16  majority of selling tobacco, and as I understand

         17  they're there to smoke cigars, and they have

         18  employees. So, I'm at a loss as to understand the

         19  major impact economically if they closed. Our

         20  unemployment levels are very high, I don't know what

         21  the employee numbers are in cigar bars, because I'm

         22  told there are about seven or eight. I don't know

         23  how many employees are in cigar bars, so I'm at a

         24  loss to understand the economic impact or adding to

         25  the unemployment rolls some very huge numbers. If

                                                            41

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  you can explain that?

          3                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I don't think

          4  you can explain the resolution of the cigar bar

          5  issue on the basis of economics. I think the best

          6  estimates are that there will be seven cigar bars

          7  that are grandparented under this bill. This is not

          8  an economic thing, it was obviously a compromise,

          9  but I do think, and you can agree or disagree, as to

         10  whether it's a good thing to close them down or not,

         11  clearly somewhat philosophically inconsistent with

         12  our general view of saving the lives of employees,

         13  but from an economic perspective in terms of impact

         14  on their business, I think it is very clear that

         15  they are very different than your generic bar or

         16  restaurant because their livelihood, their identity

         17  is completely dependent upon cigars.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I'll move to

         19  another question.

         20                 When the smoking bill came into being

         21  and those bars, parts of the restaurant, sectioned

         22  off and they spent a great deal of money in

         23  ventilation and the equipment to do that, now that

         24  is not any good anymore, so the monies that they

         25  spend on that, that's it, because what they've done
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          2  to be in compliance is no longer in compliance,

          3  they've got to go to something else.

          4                 If any of them chose to build or to

          5  have this separate room, and they must have

          6  ventilation in there, I'm asking you to look at the

          7  economics of the consideration of how we can help

          8  them, since they spent a great deal of money in that

          9  ventilation system, if they so choose to have this

         10  other room, they're going to have to have a

         11  ventilation system. It seems to me that they obeyed

         12  the law, now they are out of that, there's another

         13  law imposing some heavy financial constraints; is

         14  there any thought of what you do to that small

         15  businessman to help them?

         16                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Well, first,

         17  just to clarify, the existing statute does not

         18  require any business owner to put in any separate

         19  system, some have done so, there was a survey done,

         20  the average expenditure was $200. There are

         21  undoubtedly several, a handful that put in extensive

         22  systems or more expensive systems, but this was not

         23  a requirement of the statute, and in fact, the

         24  current statute would give business owners the

         25  freedom to configure their space as they like,
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          2  without having to have a separate smoking,

          3  non-smoking area. That's exclusive of the smoking

          4  room ventilation system, which I think I would say

          5  it would be surprising if a rational business owner

          6  would proceed with that, with the likelihood that in

          7  three years it would no longer be allowed, so going

          8  into that fully aware that it's a time limited

          9  exemption.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: All right,

         11  thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         13  Rivera. And I just want to say we've been joined by

         14  two members of the Health Committee, both from

         15  Brooklyn, they may have car pooled in in

         16  anticipation of the strike.

         17                 Council Member Kendall Stewart and

         18  Council Member Yvette Clarke.

         19                 A question from Council Member

         20  Rivera.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you very

         22  much, Madam Chair.

         23                 Thank you, Deputy Mayor, and

         24  Commissioner, for joining us here today. I just have

         25  a couple of questions now. I know that most of us
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          2  weren't here in 1995 when we passed the previous law

          3  into enactment in the City of New York, but in your

          4  testimony, Deputy Mayor, you stated that in 1995

          5  when we passed the law, that jobs weren't lost, and

          6  you stated in figures from 1993 to 1997; why did you

          7  choose those years to give us examples?

          8                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: They

          9  bracketed the passage of the law itself, so you had

         10  a pretty good test of before and after impacts.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Okay. Because

         12  I can understand how some people could misconstrue

         13  those numbers to say, well, what if during 1993 to

         14  1995 there was a huge rise in employment in the

         15  restaurant and bar industry and then a sudden

         16  decrease that will account for the 11,000; can that

         17  argument be valid or no?

         18                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I don't think

         19  so. In fact, you go back and you look at sort of the

         20  1994 and '95 period, they were sort of average years

         21  at best in the economy, certainly in the City, you

         22  did start to see it pick up after that, but in '93

         23  was good, '94 was not so good, '95 a little better,

         24  '96 got better. It's not explained by the economy

         25  per se. Some piece of it was explained, but I think
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          2  it's very clear that when you look at the trends and

          3  compare with the rise in the economy as a whole that

          4  in fact the impact is still, you know, positive.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Okay. And in

          6  reference to the amendments put into 256, which is

          7  now 256-A, in the separate ventilated unstaffed

          8  smoking lounges for bars, why was it chosen that

          9  bars could have these separate ventilated rooms and

         10  not restaurants?

         11                 I mean, if the effort was to just

         12  protect employees, technically, theoretically if you

         13  put the separate ventilated rooms in restaurants as

         14  well, employees would not be affected. I mean, why

         15  was that decision made? Maybe the Commissioner could

         16  explain that.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Well, again, as

         18  Deputy Mayor Doctoroff said, this represents a

         19  compromise. The issue here is a time limited

         20  opportunity for institutions which have claimed that

         21  this is really integral to their business, that they

         22  would have an opportunity to allow smoking in such a

         23  way that it was ensured that workers were not

         24  exposed.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: But they
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          2  wouldn't be exposed in the restaurants as well if

          3  they had separate ventilated systems; isn't that

          4  true?

          5                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: That's correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: So, why wasn't

          7  the courtesy extended to the restaurants that was

          8  extended to the bars?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I think the

         10  concern, again, was that the greatest concern raised

         11  was the possible impact, the alleged impact on bars,

         12  and so this was, as was said, a compromise issue,

         13  it's time limited, and it is consistent with the

         14  idea both that we should ensure that no worker has

         15  to risk cancer or heart disease to hold a job, and

         16  also that we should try to keep the playing field as

         17  level as possible.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Okay, and I

         19  just have about two more questions. Thank you.

         20                 In reference to the cigar bars, why

         21  is it that they were grandfathered as of December

         22  31st, 2001, and why not as of December 31st, 2002,

         23  to give an opportunity for a business to determine

         24  whether or not they do actually gain a substantial

         25  amount of income from their tobacco sales? Or as a

                                                            47

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  matter of fact, might not enact the grandfathering

          3  provision when they actually, when we do, in fact,

          4  enact the law, why was the decision made for

          5  December 31st, 2001?

          6                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I believe that

          7  the intent was to ensure that these are bonafide and

          8  that suddenly we don't find that hundreds and

          9  hundreds or thousands of bars find themselves to be

         10  tobacco or cigar bars. And, so, since we are still

         11  in 2002, by cutting off that in 2001, no one

         12  generally goes back and changes the path, so we're

         13  able to actually verify that that is a bonafide

         14  tobacco business.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Now, in terms

         16  of inspection enforcement of this law, I know

         17  Department of Health will have pretty much full

         18  control of the inspection. How does that enforcement

         19  work? Will you be doing random searches, going to

         20  random locations? Will it be patrons calling up the

         21  Department of Health to advise you that there's, you

         22  know, a facility that's not in compliance with the

         23  law, or is it also -- and also, how many inspectors

         24  do you have designated to enforce this law once we

         25  pass it?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Once the law is

          3  passed, we will undertake a project to look at

          4  precisely how we will enforce. I'll give you the

          5  general outline first. As we do now, our inspectors

          6  who inspect every restaurant in New York City in all

          7  bars that serve food, currently inspect for and cite

          8  violations of the Smoke Free Air Act of 1995, and

          9  those inspectors will include the new statute once

         10  that is passed.

         11                 In addition, we have a complaint line

         12  and we hope to enable web-based submission of

         13  complaints, if there are members of the public who

         14  wish to submit complaints about violations of the

         15  law. We would also respond to those complaints by

         16  sending inspectors out to see if they're valid, and

         17  if so, to implement the fine provisions of the

         18  statute.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: And how many

         20  inspectors are you going to have designated towards

         21  this? I mean, is there going to be a specific unit,

         22  or is it going to be -- how many inspectors do you

         23  actually have on hand that does go around throughout

         24  the restaurants and bars to inspect health

         25  violations.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: We haven't

          3  worked out the details as yet. There are

          4  approximately 90 inspectors to inspect the 20,000

          5  restaurants in New York City each year, and that

          6  inspectional program will include this as a

          7  function. Some of the smoke-specific complaints may

          8  be simpler to verify than the comprehensive

          9  restaurant inspection, so we may use a lower level

         10  of staff to do some of the initial compliance

         11  checks, but also I would emphasize that this is an

         12  educational effort with restaurants and bars, and we

         13  want to work with them collaboratively to ensure

         14  that the law of the City of New York is enforced.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Okay, and last

         16  but not least, in reference to the ventilation

         17  systems again, larger businesses do, and fortunately

         18  you will have the upper hand economically because

         19  they can afford to go through the costly Department

         20  of Buildings contract, that they had applications

         21  that they have to file in order to change their

         22  structures as well as putting in the ventilation

         23  systems that will cost a substantial amount of

         24  money. Now, large businesses will be able to do

         25  that, but unfortunately the smaller, local taverns
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          2  or bars will not be able to afford to, one, maybe

          3  put in 25 percent of their establishment dedicated

          4  to smoking, and, two, may not be able to afford the

          5  ventilation system.

          6                 Now, is there any type of program

          7  that we can do to help these smaller businesses that

          8  will in actuality, because it's right there, that,

          9  you know, there is a cost factor, is there any type

         10  in programs we can put in place to help them in this

         11  time of need?

         12                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: We should

         13  make very clear we're trying to discourage smoking,

         14  not to encourage it, and therefore, I would not

         15  offer any real hope that we'll be offering any

         16  incentives to --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: But it's not a

         18  level playing field, though, because larger

         19  businesses will have the upper hand.

         20                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Don't forget

         21  this is only for three years. We don't expect a

         22  whole lot of people, if any, to make the investments

         23  in rooms where people can smoke for three years. So,

         24  we'll see, obviously. But, again, the goal here is

         25  to discourage the harmful -- to discourage smoking.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: No, I totally

          3  understand that the purpose of this is to protect

          4  employees and discourage smoking, but my fear is to

          5  say in location A there is a large business, large

          6  restaurant that has a lot of money that can afford

          7  to put in a ventilation system and right next door

          8  there is a smaller business that may not be able to

          9  afford to put in the smoking room, or a ventilation

         10  system, that those patrons will then move from

         11  location B to go to location A and adversely affect

         12  the smaller business owners. I mean, that is

         13  something that can actually take place and that's

         14  real, and we know that in the City of New York 90

         15  percent of all businesses are smaller-owned

         16  businesses and not large.

         17                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: As Deputy Mayor

         18  Doctoroff says, we do not expect anything

         19  significant number of entities to construct such

         20  rooms; however, if the number became large, the

         21  Council would certainly be free to go back and

         22  remove that criteria.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 I want to thank you, again, Deputy
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          2  Mayor and Commissioner, for coming to testify with

          3  us, and I would also like to commend our Chairwoman

          4  and our Committee for being able to come up with

          5  some form of compromise for this bill.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          8                 Council Member Oddo.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Madam

         10  Chair. And good morning, Mr. Deputy Mayor and

         11  Commissioner. I want to follow up on what Council

         12  Member Rivera closed with.

         13                 Gentlemen, can you help me respond to

         14  the seemingly widespread criticism that the

         15  requirements for the smoking room are artificially,

         16  some say intentionally too stringent and that in

         17  effect this exemption is illusory? How do I respond

         18  to those bar owners in my district that have hit me

         19  with that issue?

         20                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I guess the

         21  real issue is the illusory nature of a smoking room

         22  that isn't separately ventilated and that does allow

         23  air to go back into the rest of the room. With

         24  buildings currently, in order to save money over the

         25  last 20 to 30 years, a large proportion of the air
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          2  in a building is recirculated, only by having a

          3  separate ventilation system, which exhausts the

          4  outside, and which outside exhaust is not directly

          5  taken back into the inside air, can you ensure that

          6  actually the cancer-causing chemicals in secondhand

          7  smoke are not distributed throughout the ventilation

          8  system in the building, and only by ensuring a room

          9  where the air doesn't woosh back into the rest of

         10  the bar can you ensure that you are ensuring a safe

         11  workplace and a safe location.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Both you and the

         13  Deputy Mayor just testified that you don't expect

         14  many establishments to be able to reach, if you

         15  will, the smoking room exemption; did I understand

         16  that to be correct?

         17                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I think two

         18  issues, one is the challenge of constructing one

         19  correctly, and the second is the issue of why

         20  someone would do that when they know that they would

         21  have to recup their investment in a 36-month period.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Well, again

         23  following up on Council Member Rivera's question,

         24  for close to a decade this Chamber has heard

         25  testimony from the industry talking about potential
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          2  economic effect. Some of us have disagreed with

          3  that. One of the -- the common ground that those of

          4  us in favor of these restrictions and those opposed

          5  have found is a level playing field, and Council

          6  Member Rivera asked a question about are we --

          7  everyone testified that they want a level playing

          8  field. The Deputy Mayor just used that phrase. Are

          9  we in effect creating an unfair and uneven playing

         10  field with this exemption?

         11                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Well, as has

         12  been said, politics is the art of the possible, and

         13  just as seven cigar bars represents a compromise, so

         14  a very small number, if any, facilities that would

         15  construct a separate room, would represent a small

         16  exemption. And I would reiterate what I said

         17  earlier, if it comes a large scale endeavor, then

         18  that's something that the Council might wish to

         19  reconsider in the future, but we don't anticipate

         20  that that will happen.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You and I will

         22  both be here in three years, so -- that was not

         23  designed to cut you off.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I'm cutting

         25  myself off.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

          3                 Council Member Stewart, who will be

          4  followed by Council Member Clarke, and Council

          5  Member Clarke will be the last questioner for this

          6  panel. So, just one sec, I want to just announce the

          7  next panel so folks could be on deck, will be

          8  comprised of David Rabin, Vikki Barbero, Ciaran

          9  Staunton and Robert Bookman.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         11  Madam Chair.

         12                 Good morning, gentlemen. How many

         13  countries or states have smoke-free or modified

         14  smoke-free legislation that you know of right now?

         15                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: There are more

         16  than 100 jurisdictions in the country which have

         17  some form of smoke-free legislation. I don't have

         18  the exact number. Statewide smoke-free legislation

         19  has been passed in Delaware and California. As you

         20  know, partly because of the leadership of New York

         21  City, the City of Boston has recently passed

         22  smoke-free workplace legislation. The neighboring

         23  cities of Nassau has passed, and other neighboring

         24  cities are considering it. The City of Chicago has

         25  begun to consider it. And, so, I think this is the
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          2  acceleration of a trend which began elsewhere but is

          3  as a result of the leadership of New York City is

          4  now really gaining momentum nationally and

          5  internationally.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And are any

          7  adverse economic studies that you have seen with any

          8  of these legislation?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: No. In fact, we

         10  just recently saw data from Toronto, Ontario, which

         11  went smoke-free a year ago August, just before 9/11

         12  which resulted in a very substantial decline in

         13  their overall economy, and that independent

         14  assessment by a consulting firm, a well-known

         15  consulting firm also found no evidence of any

         16  significant long-term economic dislocation.

         17                 So, I think that as we've said, there

         18  are multiple studies that show no impact, or

         19  sometimes a slight positive impact, and there are no

         20  valid studies that we have seen that suggest any

         21  sustained negative impact on the bar and restaurant

         22  industry, and quite the contrary, suggestive

         23  evidence to indicate that there can be a recapturing

         24  of public spaces, a recapturing of the market of the

         25  majority of people who don't smoke by many of those
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          2  institutions.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I notice that

          4  this legislation deals mainly with cigarettes and

          5  tobacco, not tobacco but cigars. What happened to

          6  the people who smoke the pipe?

          7                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Actually, the

          8  definition is not of a cigar bar but of a tobacco

          9  bar, and so whatever form that tobacco is in would

         10  be included as long as they had more than ten

         11  percent of their received by -- from tobacco,

         12  humadors or other tobacco-related products in the

         13  Year 2001.

         14                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: To paraphrase

         15  former Justice of the Supreme Court Potter Stewart

         16  when asked about pornography, "you know smoking when

         17  you smell it." I don't think there's any real debate

         18  over what smoking is, so smoking itself is included.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         20  gentlemen. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         22  Clarke.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you,

         24  Madam Chair. Good morning, gentlemen.

         25                 I'm concerned a bit about the
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          2  amendments that we've made and I'll tell you why.

          3  One, it definitely skews the balance here. I want to

          4  ask a question about the cigar bars. Is the

          5  assumption that these grandparented in cigar bars

          6  are it, so that if anyone wishes to open a cigar bar

          7  in the future that they would have to adhere to the

          8  proposed new law?

          9                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: It's more

         10  stringent than that. You have to have been in

         11  business in 2001 and sold more than ten percent of,

         12  I don't have the exact language here --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: So what we're

         14  saying --

         15                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: Let me finish.

         16  More than ten percent of their gross receipts in

         17  2001, so there cannot be any additional tobacco bars

         18  opened.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Oh, so we're

         20  saying that we're now limiting entrepreneurship in

         21  the City of New York?

         22                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: What we're

         23  saying is that a limited compromise is being made so

         24  that no currently existing business is harmed by

         25  this legislation.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: And so that in

          3  the future there will never, ever be any more cigar

          4  bars; I just want to understand that. This is it for

          5  cigar bars in New York. Seven. And where are they

          6  located?

          7                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I don't know

          8  the details. We will consider their applications

          9  when they make them.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Just seven is the

         11  number we think that it is.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Oh.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: It could possibly

         14  be eight. I mean, we don't believe there are

         15  hundreds.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Do we know who

         17  they are, where they are, who owns them?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I don't believe we

         19  have all of that information about the existing

         20  seven, no.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay. So we're

         22  putting a bill together built on an assumption of

         23  seven business owners who we don't know, we don't

         24  know their location, and these are the people.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I do have their
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          2  locations and I can forward that to you and their

          3  names.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: All right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I don't know that

          6  I know all of their ownerships.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Well, that

          8  scares me. That really scares me.

          9                 And let me ask another thing. I think

         10  there's exceptions, and I'm thinking about the outer

         11  boroughs to be quite honest with you. All of this

         12  other stuff, you know, perhaps in the wealthier

         13  parts of the City, you know people can really absorb

         14  this, but I'm thinking about the outer boroughs in

         15  the neighborhoods where we have places like the

         16  American Legion Hall, Veterans of Foreign Wars,

         17  things of that nature, who were exempt I believe.

         18  And next to them is a local tavern that, you know,

         19  is a mom and pop establishment, all they've ever had

         20  to do was, you know, just run their business, and

         21  now they got to build this room with this huge

         22  ventilation system, and I'm saying to myself that

         23  since smoking still remains legal in New York City,

         24  that if I lived in that neighborhood, and I know

         25  American Legion, no problem, the guy next door got
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          2  problems, I'm going to the American Legion Hall; how

          3  do we balance that? That's an unbalance here and

          4  it's glaring. It's glaring. And I don't know that we

          5  stuck to the intent of the original legislation once

          6  we've done all of this.

          7                 What I see here is a changing of this

          8  legislation that skews it hugely in favor of

          9  specific populations in the City of New York where

         10  we don't have the names of and some other -- you

         11  know, I'm troubled by this, I just wanted to put

         12  that on the record.

         13                 COMMISSIONER FRIEDEN: I would just

         14  like to comment that I do think that we're being

         15  consistent with the basic concept of this

         16  legislation.

         17                 The only membership associations that

         18  would be exempt from the smoke-free statute are

         19  those which have no employees.

         20                 So, if there are -- that's the basic

         21  concept that no one should have to risk cancer just

         22  to hold a job. Again, as I said earlier, if the

         23  Council found that there were large numbers of these

         24  membership associations cropping up and creating an

         25  uneven playing field, that's something that could be
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          2  revisited.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: But I'm just

          4  thinking about the immediate impact, and I know that

          5  in Brooklyn, New York we already have several of

          6  these organizations and they're right there in the

          7  neighborhoods and the communities where we live, and

          8  it's going to have an immediate impact, and I think

          9  we needed to do the proper analysis of what the --

         10  every borough, what the nuances of those areas

         11  actually are to be able to craft something that

         12  sticks to the intent of what you're trying to

         13  achieve here. That is not done. That is very clear.

         14  And again, to say that we have seven, or maybe eight

         15  or maybe nine or maybe ten cigar bars that are

         16  grandparented in and saying that no one else ever

         17  can do a cigar bar, that's unAmerican, that's

         18  unAmerican. And I don't know what we're trying, I

         19  understand what we're trying to get at, but there

         20  isn't a balance gentlemen, there just isn't a

         21  balance. And it's elitest. It's extremely elitest.

         22  Either you have the money or you have a cigar bar,

         23  this is not New York -- we're not dealing with

         24  smoking here, we're dealing with something else

         25  layered on top of smoking and I'm uncomfortable with
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          2  it.

          3                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: I think again

          4  we have to reemphasize, we think the exception to

          5  the so-called level playing field that we've all

          6  discussed are very, very limited, a very limited

          7  number of cigar bars in which smoking is permitted,

          8  a very limited number of no employee halls, and it's

          9  a very different experience than going to a bar.

         10                 We're really talking about a very,

         11  very, very narrow set of exceptions.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Deputy Mayor,

         13  one thing that I know about New Yorkers, and

         14  particularly in the outer boroughs, that they're

         15  very creative. Extremely creative and innovative.

         16  Now, you give me a veterans hall with no employees,

         17  and that will be the most jumping joint in Brooklyn.

         18  Let's be realistic here, I mean since prohibition

         19  people have come up with ways of getting around, and

         20  we created a situation of loophole here. We really

         21  have. And until the appropriate analysis is done,

         22  we're shifting basically, you know, we're shifting

         23  venues essentially for which people will conduct

         24  illegal activity.

         25                 If we're talking about smoking
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          2  cessation, we're talking about secondhand smoke,

          3  then we're not addressing it by creating this

          4  division and this innovative way for people to get

          5  around what you're trying to achieve. It's not here.

          6  I don't see it. You're saying that you're limiting,

          7  but what you're doing is you're squeezing out one

          8  end and opening up another. And this is what will

          9  happen in the outer boroughs, I'm telling you. I

         10  know where I live and I've seen it for years,

         11  through social clubs and other activities that take

         12  place in our communities, people, as long as it's a

         13  legal activity, will find a way to conduct business.

         14                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: It's not

         15  perfect, we agree. But little in life is.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you both

         18  very much for taking the time to come before the

         19  Committee.

         20                 DEPUTY MAYOR DOCTOROFF: Thank you

         21  very much.

         22                 Next we're going to hear the panel of

         23  David Rabin, Vikki Barbero, Ciaran Staunton, Robert

         24  Bookman.

         25                 After that panel will be a panel, so
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          2  these folks can kind of be on deck, which includes

          3  Hector Batista, Linda Azzolini, Candida A. Bido and

          4  John Kang.  Those four folks -- four folks, yes,

          5  will follow this group of four. If folks can try to

          6  exit the Chambers quietly so we cannot have to wait

          7  to long before we start the second panel.

          8                 Thank you. If folks could kind of try

          9  to exit quickly and quietly so we don't have too

         10  much of a delay because we are running a little late

         11  for the start of this panel anyway. So, you all can

         12  go, and whoever would like to go first, that's

         13  entirely up to you.

         14                 If you have testimony or other stuff

         15  you want to hand in, just hand it to the Sergeants

         16  and they will give it to the Committee.

         17                 MR. BOOKMAN: Good morning. My name is

         18  Robert Bookman. I am Counsel to the New York

         19  Nightlife Association.

         20                 There is a need amongst our industry

         21  which will face great hardships as a direct result

         22  of this legislation, to leave this Chamber today

         23  having accomplished at least one thing, honesty in

         24  this debate.

         25                 So, let us be honest with each other.
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          2  The new language is not a compromise, but merely

          3  some window dressing placed on the Mayor's bill so

          4  everyone can pretend that something was

          5  accomplished, as a result of your admittedly long

          6  and hard bargaining with the Mayor. While we

          7  recognize and appreciate the Council's efforts,

          8  let's admit that it did not succeed. Let's be

          9  honest. There are no mom and pop bars or nightclubs

         10  with no employees. Our 120-member organization has

         11  none and in 23 years of legal practice I have never

         12  represented one.

         13                 The only bar I am aware of which

         14  would meet this exception is Archie's Place from

         15  "All in the Family," but even Archie went out of

         16  business 20 years ago.

         17                 Let's be honest, there will be no

         18  smoking rooms constructed. The many pages of fine

         19  print make sure of that. There are no real

         20  exemptions that will help anyone in this bill, in

         21  this industry accept cigar bars. If there was, then

         22  why limit the number of owners with no employees to

         23  three. Why not six or seven or ten? As long as there

         24  are no employees. After all, ten percent ownership

         25  is the accepted standard used by City agencies in

                                                            67

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  licensing matters to determine the significant

          3  operating interests.

          4                 If a place has eight owners but no

          5  employees, why shouldn't it be exempt? And if a

          6  large club with a capacity of 1,000, the only ones

          7  we might possibly be able to afford the smoking

          8  room, wants to risk a six figure investment in a

          9  smoking lounge with silly restrictions that he will

         10  only be able to use for three years, why should it

         11  be limited to a tiny 20 by 15 foot sized studio, the

         12  same size that a club with a 100-person capacity

         13  could have?

         14                 Let's be honest. The Mayor only

         15  agreed to these so-called exemptions because his

         16  negotiators placed enough restrictive language in

         17  this bill so as to ensure that no business fits into

         18  these exemptions, they simply do not exist.

         19                 Let's also be honest concerning what

         20  is going to happen next spring and summer when

         21  thousands of smokers take to the streets every night

         22  in residential neighborhoods so that they can smoke.

         23  The quality of life complaints will come pouring in,

         24  police will respond and when their lawyers inform

         25  them that these smokers are violating no laws, the
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          2  bars and clubs will receive harassment violations

          3  simply for enforcing your no indoor smoking law that

          4  you have forced on us.

          5                 I see no legal protections for this

          6  industry in this bill to prevent its likely

          7  scenario. And I was just informed that the Health

          8  Department is now adopting new inspection standards

          9  which would include an automatic failure for a bar

         10  or a nightclub or a restaurant if they receive a

         11  tobacco violation, and two failures and you can be

         12  closed.

         13                 So they're already planning to

         14  circumvent the penalties that you put in the law.

         15  And let's also be honest concerning --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Mr. Bookman, can

         17  you wrap up?

         18                 MR. BOOKMAN: I will finish up, yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         20                 MR. BOOKMAN: Just give me another

         21  couple of minutes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'll give you

         23  another minute.

         24                 MR. BOOKMAN: Let's be honest

         25  concerning the most outrageous statement of all
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          2  repeated so often people are starting to believe it.

          3                 One-thousand New Yorkers who worked

          4  in bars, nightclubs, bowling allies and billiard

          5  parlors and small offices did not die this past year

          6  as a result of working in our establishments. This

          7  is a liable which must be stopped now.

          8                 Finally, I would be less than honest

          9  if I did not express our industry's deep

         10  disappointment. We frankly expected more from an

         11  independent legislative body that enjoys a vetoproof

         12  majority that should have nothing to fear from a

         13  Mayor with a low approval rating and going south.

         14                 While we respect the deeply-held

         15  beliefs of many of you concerning the dangers of

         16  smoking, beliefs many of us share, you have fallen

         17  short of your traditional role, the protector of

         18  small businesses and the little guy with no

         19  institutional power. Honestly, we expected more.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Who is ever next,

         21  please. If the light is off, the mic is on.

         22                 MS. BARBERO: It's on now.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         24                 MS. BARBERO: Good morning. My name is

         25  Vikki Barbero. I'm the Vice Chair of Community Board
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          2  5, and I'm the Chair of the Public Safety Quality of

          3  Life Committee, I've been for about eight years.

          4                 Just so that you know, our board runs

          5  from 14th to 59th Street from Lexington to Eighth.

          6  It has a huge concentration of clubs, bars and

          7  lounges, and an equally large concentration of

          8  residential neighborhoods.

          9                 I've been involved in quality of life

         10  issues since coming on this board approximately a

         11  decade ago. The first full board meeting I attended,

         12  a now well-known member of the community came to the

         13  public session to speak about the problems and

         14  impact that clubs were having on and around the 20th

         15  Street area. At my first quality of life Committee

         16  meeting, I remember the issues that were being

         17  brought to the board. Clubs in the flat iron

         18  district and the negative impact they were having on

         19  both businesses and residents in the area.

         20                 The problems involve the noise

         21  emanating from inside the establishment, usually due

         22  to the lack of adequate sound-proofing. But the

         23  major complaints were those regarding activity

         24  outside, on the sidewalks and in the street. They

         25  ranged from congestion in the streets themselves,
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          2  blocking emergency vehicles in particular, to loud

          3  and rowdy patrons in the early hours of the morning,

          4  creating problems on the street and making it

          5  virtually impossible to get a reasonable night's

          6  sleep.

          7                 Frustrated sleep-deprived residents

          8  came to the board and to the quality of life

          9  committee begging us to help them find a way to deal

         10  with the assaults that was being inflicted on them.

         11                 Since that time this has continued to

         12  be the number one quality of life problem in this

         13  area and in several other neighborhoods in our

         14  board. Over the years, in addition to hearing the

         15  plight of the residents, we have also learned of

         16  some of the difficulties bars and club owners have

         17  had trying to address such concerns. Probably the

         18  one thing we hear the most is their frustration in

         19  receiving disorderly premise and failure to control

         20  crowd violations, when they have called the police

         21  to handle street problems.

         22                 Since community boards look at

         23  summonses and violations when establishments are up

         24  for renewal of their liquor license, it is a

         25  catch-22 for the establishments to call the police
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          2  to help with problems on the sidewalk and in the

          3  street.

          4                 When Community Board 5 learned of the

          5  Mayor's Intro. No. 256, which lists the exemption of

          6  bars, lounges and nightclubs, we looked at this

          7  issue specifically as to the impact it would have on

          8  the quality of life in our communities. Our City,

          9  and particularly the Midtown area, is unique. Our

         10  physical make-up and density, as compared to other

         11  states and cities, cannot and should not be

         12  compared. The combination of businesses and

         13  residents co-existing side-by-side above and across

         14  from clubs, bars and lounges, is probably not like

         15  any other city and certainly not to the same degree.

         16  And while we commend the Mayor for his concern for

         17  the health of employees and patrons at such

         18  establishments, from a quality of life standpoint we

         19  agree and strongly support the position --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You're going to

         21  need to wrap up, please.

         22                 MS. BARBERO: I've got one more

         23  paragraph.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         25                 MS. BARBERO: That if the present
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          2  smoking ban was expanded to include bars, lounges

          3  and clubs, thousands of residents would be adversely

          4  impacted by forcing smokers into the streets.

          5                 Owners will have no legal authority

          6  to prohibit any activity on the public streets

          7  outside and around their establishments,

          8  neighborhoods will be faced with regular nightly

          9  mayhem on the streets, especially during early

         10  morning hours. We ask the City Council to support

         11  Community Board 5's position not to include bars,

         12  lounges and clubs in the smoking ban, and more

         13  importantly, to please hear the pleas of the

         14  residents who have expressed their concern. It seems

         15  inevitable that already existing problems that

         16  negatively impact their quality of life will only be

         17  increased and exacerbated if we are faced with

         18  dozens, if not hundreds of people, going into the

         19  streets to smoke.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         22                 MR. STAUNTON: Good morning, Madam

         23  Chairperson. Good morning, counselors.

         24                 My name is Ciaran Staunton. As many

         25  of you know, my wife Oriel and I own a small bar in
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          2  Midtown called "O'Neils." I had been looking forward

          3  to coming to today's hearing to continue the

          4  dialogue that would update the City's smoking law,

          5  and also continue to protect small family businesses

          6  like our own. But on Wednesday I was devastated to

          7  learn that the City Council no longer cared, the

          8  deed has been done.

          9                 The stark reality is that some time

         10  in the new year Oriel and I will have to lay off

         11  three of our 12 employees. This is the conclusion we

         12  have come to after sitting down with our accountant

         13  this past week. After realizing what will happen

         14  when we lose as much as 20 percent of our business

         15  in the first year.

         16                 This smoking bill will force us to

         17  throw out many of our best customers. The experience

         18  in California and Ottowa tells us that we can expect

         19  a business drop of at least ten and even 20 percent.

         20  I have told this Committee before about my brother

         21  in San Francisco and the 20 percent drop he

         22  experienced after California's smoking ban passed

         23  years ago. Now we're bringing that same devastation

         24  to New York City.

         25                 Again, I tell this Council that three
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          2  of my 12 employees will be laid off. Between the

          3  three they have seven children. That's seven

          4  children who have a parent in 2003 will be going on

          5  the ranks of unemployment because of this bill. That

          6  will be 13 dependents on unemployment assistance.

          7  What's most upsetting is that we thought the City

          8  Council would work with us. We always knew that this

          9  Christmas Mayor Bloomberg would take the role of

         10  Grinch, what we never expected is that this Council

         11  will be so ready to have this Grinch, have him steel

         12  Christmas from working families like Oriel's and

         13  mine.

         14                 Can anyone think of any so-called

         15  owner/operated bars that they are so small they have

         16  no employees? I don't know of any.

         17                 The other amendment to this Bloomberg

         18  smoking bill amounts to nothing more than a Red

         19  Herring created to give an illusion of compromise.

         20                 The only compromise in this bill is

         21  for the big boys. The small handful of cigar bars,

         22  it's not surprising that Mayor Bloomberg might stick

         23  up for such interests, but the City Council? I

         24  thought you members of the Council were supposed to

         25  stick up for us, the little guy, the neighborhood
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          2  business, the families trying to feed their kids.

          3                 I hope you're all proud of yourselves

          4  that you delivered such a nice gift this Christmas

          5  to the fat cats who go to and own cigar bars, the

          6  rest of us I guess don't matter.

          7                 I leave you today with the following

          8  message: to vote for this bill is to vote for the

          9  downfall of the family-owned business. To vote for

         10  this bill is to vote for even more employment. To

         11  vote for this bill is to say that we don't care

         12  about the little guy.

         13                 There's nothing in our stocking this

         14  year, there's nothing for us underneath this year's

         15  tree because you, this City Council, are giving it

         16  all to the Mayor on a silver plate.

         17                 This so-called compromise bill is not

         18  a compromise, it is a disgrace. It is not a

         19  compromise, it is capitulation. Thank you very much.

         20                 MR. RABIN: Good morning. Christine, I

         21  hate to correct you, but it's David Rabin.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm terribly

         23  sorry. I'm sorry about that.

         24                 MR. RABIN: That's fine.

         25                 I'm President of the New York
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          2  Nightlife Association, I'm also co-owner of Lotus

          3  and co-owner of Union Bar. I'm disappointed that

          4  more members are not here today, because I think

          5  this is such a serious issue. Contrary to the advice

          6  of my friend and counsel Robert Bookman, I am not

          7  prepared to see this as a fait accompli, and make

          8  nice today. For some naive and foolish reason I

          9  maintain a some caperesque sentimentality regarding

         10  the motives of elected officials, and thus I can't

         11  believe what I'm seeing and reading.

         12                 This Council knows that this bill is

         13  going to greatly impact on the quality of life.

         14  Historically community boards are not seen as

         15  friendly to nightlife, yet Community Boards 3, 5 and

         16  7 in Manhattan alone have already come out against

         17  this legislation because they know what's about to

         18  happen in their streets.

         19                 Perhaps you're relying on public

         20  opinion, but I want to know, where would public

         21  opinion be if we had the money to run PSAs, showing

         22  what Amsterdam Avenue or Bleeker Street are going to

         23  look like at 2:00 a.m. with dozens and dozens of

         24  smokers outside.

         25                 Smoking rooms are a bad joke. We're
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          2  not airports. You don't check into a bar and not be

          3  able to leave. No one is going to use these smoking

          4  rooms. They're going to go outside on a beautiful

          5  night. The cleaning rules are so unrealistic,

          6  they'll put more people in the street anyway. And as

          7  an aside, who is going to pay the bill for all my

          8  increased security to act as internal police so I

          9  can watch if people are smoking on my three floors

         10  and in my five rooms.

         11                 Where would the Mayor be if he hadn't

         12  had a hypocritical, politically calculating and

         13  mocky restaurateur to make PSAs for him, even though

         14  that operator smoked himself and has not banned

         15  smoking from his establishment? If that operator is

         16  so concerned about his employees' health and so

         17  convinced that there are so many non-smokers waiting

         18  to patronize his bars, why hasn't he put his money

         19  where his mouth is and ban smoking? Because he knows

         20  it's not true.

         21                 The Council knows how ridiculous it

         22  is to compare New York to Ottawa or to Hamlet's in

         23  Martha's Vineyard or even to California. Other later

         24  testimony will indicate the Council members are

         25  wrong.
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          2                 I've worked in bars and clubs for 13

          3  years. I don't smoke. Never once, not even during my

          4  two years in Moscow, Russia, have I seen an employee

          5  rushed to the hospital due to smoke inhalation.

          6  Where did you find the witnesses at the last

          7  hearing? The ones with preexisting hypersensitivity

          8  to smoke who chose to be a bartender? What are their

          9  real career aspirations? Are they bartending to

         10  support their acting and singing careers? What if

         11  they stink? What if they don't ever get that job?

         12  When do they have to wake up and get a real job,

         13  like I had to give up on my idea of playing

         14  quarterback for the Jets?

         15                 Many of you pretend to be

         16  pro-business and to understand the importance of

         17  nightlife to New York's image and the money it

         18  funnels into our economy. I am telling you this bill

         19  will do nothing but create civil wars between bars

         20  and clubs and neighborhood residents. My guess is

         21  you all think, oh, that's okay, we'll just blame the

         22  bars and clubs. They're too disorganized to deflect

         23  the blame back where it belongs. Well, I think

         24  you're wrong, I think we will be able to let the

         25  City know that we tried to tell you what was coming.
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          2                 So, I'm here to ask you-- Christine,

          3  just 20 seconds -- I'm here to ask you to surprise

          4  me and surprise all the doubters. Don't cave into an

          5  autocratic, self-financed Mayor who is irrationally

          6  fixated on this legislation and not willing to

          7  listen to reason.

          8                 As of today's New York Post, cigar

          9  bar owners are already dancing a jig. Do what you

         10  were elected to do, show some leadership, do what

         11  you know is right for your communities, reconsider

         12  this bill, come back with real amendments that offer

         13  real compromise and real opportunity for those who

         14  choose to work in non-smoking environments. Do not

         15  toss nightlife to the wolves, do not set up your

         16  communities for the unavoidable consequences of

         17  sleepless nights. Please, please vote on your

         18  conscience and not on your political pragmatism.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         21  Rivera.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you very

         23  much, again, Madam Chair.

         24                 This question is directed towards

         25  Robert Bookman. I have a legal question.
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          2                 What happens under current law if a

          3  patron of a bar gets drunk and on the way going home

          4  gets into a car accident; can the owner be penalized

          5  or adversely affected on that?

          6                 MR. BOOKMAN: There --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Whoever wants to

          8  answer.

          9                 MR. BOOKMAN: Well, there's dram, it's

         10  called "dram shop laws," that if you serve -- you're

         11  not supposed to serve a visibly intoxicated person.

         12  That is standard, is whether you've served a visibly

         13  intoxicated person, and if they are, you're supposed

         14  to do your best to see to it that they get into a

         15  cab or something to that effect.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Now, what

         17  happens if this law is enacted, what happens if a

         18  patron that is intoxicated goes outside of the bar

         19  to smoke a cigarette and hurts himself, what would

         20  happen to the bar owner in that situation? Can he be

         21  held liable for damages?

         22                 MR. BOOKMAN: I think the real concern

         23  is that people will be going out and smoking,

         24  period, and they'll be going out in large numbers. I

         25  don't think anybody is pretending that the passage
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          2  of this law will stop the million people in New York

          3  City who choose to smoke from smoking. Just as the

          4  tax increase in tobacco last summer didn't stop

          5  people from finding other ways of buying cigarettes.

          6                 I agree with Councilwoman Clarke, you

          7  know, New Yorkers are very ingenuous, and we can't

          8  legislate prohibition. So, the more you make it

          9  difficult for people to do a legal product, the more

         10  they will find other ways of doing it, and if they

         11  don't go out onto the streets to smoke, it's not

         12  impossible to imagine that there will be illegal,

         13  unsafe, underground smoke-easys created, you know,

         14  places like Happyland waiting to be, which people

         15  can go and smoke indoors without fear, that's not

         16  what we're looking for, but that's a real fear.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: One of my

         18  other main concerns is that the quality of life

         19  concern is a major concern. It kind of pits one law

         20  against another, what's more important? Is quality

         21  of life less important, or is smoking, the health

         22  risk of that less important? And that's something

         23  for the managers to determine and something that

         24  this Council will have to bring in.

         25                 MR. BOOKMAN: Our only fear,

                                                            83

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  Councilman, with that, and I agree, is that we don't

          3  want to be placed in a position that you have placed

          4  us in, where if we enforce the law and tell

          5  everybody that smokes you have to take it outside,

          6  which is what you're telling us we have to do, put

          7  it out or take it outside, and if they're a real

          8  smoker, they'll take it outside, we don't want to be

          9  in the position then where the police come because

         10  they're getting complaints that there are people

         11  outside, and since those people aren't doing

         12  anything illegal, it's not against the law to be on

         13  the sidewalk and smoke late at night, that the

         14  captains are going to tell the Sergeants, just take

         15  care of the situation, which is generally translated

         16  into mean go inside the bar or the club and give

         17  them some sort of violation so that we can tell the

         18  residents that we did what we could. So, we're going

         19  to get harassment-type violations as a direct result

         20  of enforcing the law. You had not given us any

         21  exclusion from liability here in this law for

         22  enforcing your law.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: So you're

         24  saying there's a possibility that you'll get

         25  penalized from the Police Department, penalized from
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          2  the Department of Health, penalized from DCAS, and

          3  penalized from several organizations?

          4                 MR. BOOKMAN: Oh, it's more than just

          5  the possibility, I'll bet my house on it.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

          9  Stewart.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Good morning,

         11  gentlemen, and lady.

         12                 I believe this bill was designed to

         13  protect the health of employees, but it appears to

         14  me that the current version is worse than the

         15  previous bill, the previous version, almost

         16  discrimination and special interests.

         17                 Do you have any concrete compromise

         18  that you feel that we can work on? Because to me, I

         19  thought the bill was really to ban smoking that so

         20  that we can protect the employees. But as far as it

         21  goes right now, it seems as though we are making

         22  exceptions to quote/unquote some interests in

         23  Manhattan like the seven or eight cigar bar owners,

         24  and they can have this establishment for as long as

         25  they want, and I don't think that was the intent in
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          2  the beginning, and I don't think that was what I

          3  would like to see, if you're going to be having

          4  protection for the employees and you're going to

          5  create a bill, it should be for everybody.

          6                 Do you have any compromise that we

          7  can look at and try to come up with something that

          8  will work for everybody?

          9                 MR. RABIN: Councilman, if you'll

         10  allow this to be a two-part answer, I'll take half

         11  and give Rob half.

         12                 This is not a popular thing that I'm

         13  about to say, but I'll say it anyway. Literally

         14  every week the New York Times and New York Magazine

         15  and Time Out list five, six, ten, 15 new places that

         16  open each week. One of the contentions of the Mayor

         17  and of the Council has been that it's unfair to

         18  inquire our employees to work in these environments,

         19  because they're forced to breathe smoky air. I, for

         20  one, don't believe that for a second. I have a

         21  fantastic staff, they choose to work in Lotus

         22  because they can make an incredible amount of money

         23  in a short period of time, four or five, six hours.

         24  They know very, very well where they're working and

         25  why they're working there, and they all could go get
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          2  jobs in restaurants that are 95 percent smoke-free,

          3  they've made a free choice to work in this very

          4  small -- I believe Rob will cite you that it's under

          5  one percent of the workforce chooses to work in

          6  these environments of their own free will, they've

          7  made a determination that they don't feel it's a

          8  health threat, and even if it is a health threat,

          9  which I don't think this Committee has documented,

         10  but even if they did feel it was a health threat,

         11  they've weighed the balance, they say I want to make

         12  this money in this short amount, period of time.

         13                 As far as compromise position, each

         14  of the community boards has put forth their own

         15  version for a compromise, and I believe Rob can

         16  speak to that better than I can.

         17                 MR. BOOKMAN: Yes. The statistics that

         18  David is discussing is that according to the U.S.

         19  Department of Labor, the New York City workforce is

         20  3.3 million people, and according to those same

         21  statistics, the number of individuals who worked in

         22  bars or clubs are approximately 30,000 people.

         23                 So, our portion of the industry that

         24  we're talking about is less than one percent of the

         25  workforce.
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          2                 We have already in informal surveys

          3  of our employees indicated that approximately 50

          4  percent of our employees are smokers, because in

          5  smoking environments we obviously draw more smokers

          6  than a non-smoking environment would, so we're now

          7  down to -- so, obviously secondhand smoke is not as

          8  major concern for somebody who is a primary smoker.

          9  They should stop, but that's a different issue.

         10                 So, now we're down, Councilman, to

         11  less than one-half of one percent of the workforce

         12  works in the bars and clubs. So, if you're asking

         13  for a compromise, there is your compromise. Make us

         14  install some reasonable technology, not the space

         15  shuttle type technology that's in this bill that

         16  nobody can afford, to make the working environment

         17  better for that half of one percent, pass the rest

         18  of the Mayor's bill, and thereby give freedom of

         19  choice to that one-half of one percent of the City's

         20  workforce who can now have a choice whether to work

         21  in a smoke-free restaurant environment, you know, if

         22  you will, or a somewhat better or still smoking bar

         23  environment. And as long as those people have a

         24  freedom of choice, then nobody is being forced into

         25  doing anything and they're adults.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Would you say

          3  that it would be a reasonable thing to, if all the

          4  owners would have insurance, what we call

          5  catastrophic insurance, that even if someone left

          6  the establishment and ten years later comes down

          7  with cancer or anything like that, that insurance

          8  would be there to cover that person?

          9                 Do you think it would be reasonable

         10  to say that all bar owners, all bar owners should

         11  have that type of insurance?

         12                 MR. BOOKMAN: I don't know if such an

         13  insurance exists, but if it does, we'd certainly be

         14  willing to explore it with you, Councilman.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right,

         16  thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         18                 Council Member Sears. And that's it.

         19  I don't know if anyone else has questions for this

         20  panel, but Council Member Sears is the last

         21  questioner I have listed.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Actually, it's

         23  a comment, Madam Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: The last

         25  commenter.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay. And thank

          3  you for your testimony. I just happen to agree with

          4  you, nothing is written in stone. I mean, we're not

          5  sitting here because it's a fait accompli and we

          6  have nothing else to do. There have been many

          7  hearings on this smoking bill to packed houses, and

          8  probably these amendments have come about because of

          9  the hearings. These amendments are not a done deal.

         10  What we hear and what you say is something that we

         11  pay attention to when we go back. So, no one is to

         12  think, and I just have to stress that, that we come

         13  here and it's already accomplished. There are 51

         14  members in the Council, 51 members are not here, not

         15  51 members have signed onto this bill, so there's a

         16  lot of work to be done and we do it. So, I just want

         17  it clear, you're not wasting your time, because it's

         18  an open process, and your thoughts and what you have

         19  to say, whether they're for or against, have to be

         20  heard. You cannot stay silent and I just wanted to

         21  say that. Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         23                 Thank you, and we're going to hear

         24  from the third panel, Hector Batista, Linda

         25  Azzolina, Candid A. Bido, John Kang. That group of
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          2  four will be followed by the fourth panel, which

          3  will be Chuck Hunt, John Mulvey, Audrey Silk and

          4  Andy Breslin. They will follow these people.

          5                 If folks could kind of exit and move

          6  around a little bit quietly so we can just try to

          7  get this next panel going.

          8                 And folks could go in whatever order

          9  you would like, whoever would like to go first

         10  should begin.

         11                 Could you just get quiet, please?

         12  Thank you very, very much.

         13                 Go ahead, Hector. The light needs to

         14  be off for the mic to be on.

         15                 MR. BATISTA: Good morning.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: There you go.

         17                 MR. BATISTA: To the distinguished

         18  members of the New York City Council Health

         19  Committee.

         20                 I'm Hector Batista, Executive Vice

         21  President for the American Cancer Society. I'm so

         22  proud to be here because today New York City is

         23  about to make public health history. By passing

         24  Introduction 256, the City Council will be sending a

         25  strong signal that all workers, regardless of their
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          2  economic status, or choice in type of employment,

          3  deserve to be protected by toxins on the job.

          4                 Make no mistake, secondhand smoke is

          5  a proven killer. Listed by the US Environmental

          6  Protection Agency of the same category of

          7  carcinogen, asbestos and benzene, it is not obvious

          8  that all workers receive equal protection from these

          9  deadly cancer-causing chemicals.

         10                 In fact, it is easy to understand the

         11  threat presented by secondhand smoke. Everyone who

         12  has been to a bar or a nightclub has woken up the

         13  next day to find their clothes smelling of cigars.

         14  Unfortunately, for thousands of workers in the City,

         15  that smell does worse things to their lungs.

         16                 I know you have heard this before,

         17  but it's worth repeating. An eight-hour shift in a

         18  smoking bar is equivalent to smoking half a pack of

         19  cigarettes a day. Non-smoker exposed to secondhand

         20  smoke in the workplace have an almost 20 percent

         21  increase of lung cancer, and for those who think

         22  only of economics, let me remind them that this bill

         23  will protect workers which additionally have little

         24  or no health insurance or resources to fall back

         25  when they become ill from the effect of secondhand
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          2  smoke.

          3                 These workers deserve protection. The

          4  American Cancer Society looked at Smoke-Free Workers

          5  law, across New York State and issued a report card.

          6                 We gave Introduction 256-A, 256 and A

          7  -- this is far better than we have now. New York

          8  present law only rates as C.

          9                 City Council Speaker Miller, Council

         10  Member Quinn, and Mayor Bloomberg deserve our

         11  sincere thanks for their wisdom in creating this

         12  legislation.

         13                 Let me tell you something, New York

         14  (sic) are perfectly happy going out to dinner or

         15  drinking without smoking. It was Philip Morris who

         16  created this link between smoking and drinking, but

         17  it's the City Council and the Mayor who will break

         18  it.

         19                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         20  speak to you today. What we have here is more than

         21  worth the effort that everyone has put. I hope I

         22  could come back here soon to thank you for making

         23  the Smoke-Free Workplace Act 2002 into law. On

         24  behalf of the hundreds of thousands of volunteers of

         25  the American Cancer Society, millions of New
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          2  Yorkers, we thank the City Council and the Mayor for

          3  this important legislation.

          4                 I just want to make, since I've got a

          5  little time, I want to make a couple of points.

          6                 Just give me 20 seconds? Just give me

          7  20 seconds.

          8                 The President of the Life Association

          9  pointed out that his workers have a choice to work

         10  there and they make substantial salaries. There are

         11  a lot of other workers that don't have those

         12  choices. A lot of them are people in my community.

         13  As a minority, you know, as some of you might know,

         14  the burden of cancer has hit the minority community

         15  in a big way. It's hit the Latino community, the

         16  African American community.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Please sum

         18  up.

         19                 MR. BATISTA: And the Asian community.

         20  This bill is going to go a long way to saving lives.

         21  In the United States, 60,000 people die from

         22  secondhand smoke. That's 60,000 to many. And in

         23  Brooklyn quite a few people die of this disease. As

         24  a Brooklyn resident, I hope that you will support

         25  this bill.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Thank you.

          4                 The next speaker. Excuse me, do we

          5  have your testimony up here? Copies for

          6  distribution?

          7                 MR. KANG: No.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Okay. All

          9  right, proceed. Thank you.

         10                 MR. KANG: My name is Sung Su John

         11  Kang, I am a volunteer with American Cancer Society.

         12  I became engaged in secondhand smoke issue when I

         13  read an article in the newspaper. I would like to

         14  read just one quote. Bars without smoking is a kiss

         15  of death. In fact, bars with smoking is kiss of

         16  death.

         17                 I'd like to read the letter that I

         18  wrote to the editor of newspaper which summarizes

         19  the reality of secondhand smoking.

         20                 November 25th, 2002. To the editor of

         21  Newsday. Re: "Restaurant group lobbies for no vote

         22  on smoking ban."

         23                 "Dear Editor, in response to the

         24  article "Restaurant group lobbies for no vote on

         25  smoking ban," November 20th, 2002 article, we should
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          2  remember the true cost of smoking on immigrant New

          3  Yorkers.

          4                 As a Korean, I know that my community

          5  suffers terribly from tobacco use. By some

          6  estimates, more than one-third of Korean men smoke,

          7  endangering not only their own health, but also that

          8  of their wives and families. Moreover, even

          9  hard-working Koreans who don't smoke are getting

         10  sick due to poor working conditions at restaurants

         11  and bars where they are forced to breathe toxic

         12  smoke day after day, shift after shift.

         13                 Many of these workers do not have

         14  health benefits or the resources to deal with lost

         15  work days. So when illness strikes them, and it

         16  does, the true effects on their"quality of life" can

         17  be devastating. Working in the service industry

         18  should not be a death sentence. Stopping the plague

         19  of secondhand smoke protects the most vulnerable New

         20  Yorkers. I urge the City Council to pass the

         21  legislation without delay.

         22                 John Kang, Volunteer, American Cancer

         23  Society."

         24                 Lastly, I just want to say, I just

         25  want to plead with you, that to please pass the
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          2  Smoke-Free Workplace Act to protect all New Yorkers.

          3  Thank you very much.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Our next

          5  speaker. Please state your name for the record.

          6                 MS. AZZOLINI: Linda Azzolini.

          7                 Good morning. My husband Lou and I

          8  are the owners of Paul and Jimmy's Restaurant on

          9  East 18th Street. I am here today as a supportive

         10  restaurant owner to urge the City Council to pass

         11  the Smoke-Free Air Act. I would like to thank all of

         12  you who have worked so hard to protect the health of

         13  the workers in New York City.

         14                 I am confident that when this act is

         15  passed, lives will be saved and restaurants will

         16  flourish.

         17                 First I should tell you that Paul and

         18  Jimmy's is a small family-owned and operated

         19  restaurant with a small bar. Including ourselves, we

         20  have 17 employees, and every single one is a smoker.

         21  Actually only one is a smoker by choice. The other

         22  16 inhale other people's smoke all day long. This is

         23  most disturbing to me.

         24                 Personally I am very sensitive to

         25  cigarette smoke and avoid parts of the restaurant
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          2  for fear of headaches and sore throats I get while

          3  working in a cloud of smoke.

          4                 Luckily my husband can tolerate the

          5  smoke better, so he works at night when the smokers

          6  are out in full force. Most nights he leaves with a

          7  headache, and at times can feel the after affects of

          8  a particularly smoky night into the next day. These

          9  affects are congestion and red eyes and headaches.

         10                 I have personally spoken to each of

         11  our workers, and they are all thrilled of the

         12  prospect of working in a smoke-free dining room.

         13  They have all suffered the consequences of

         14  secondhand smoke and are anxious to breathe clean

         15  air while they work. I'm sure you'll hear today from

         16  other restaurant owners who say their businesses

         17  will fail if this law passes. Back in 1995 when the

         18  City Council was talking about the passing of what

         19  is now the current law, we felt the same way, and

         20  the law that followed never really made sense to me.

         21  The whole idea of smaller restaurants allowing

         22  smoking by the bar, doesn't that smoke filter into

         23  the rest of the dining room, and doesn't that make

         24  more workers likely to be exposed to the smoke?

         25                 We are a neighborhood restaurant and
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          2  have many steady customers who smoke.

          3                 I have spoken to them, and the vast

          4  majority does not have a problem with restaurants

          5  becoming smoke-free. They actually have expected it,

          6  because ultimately they come here to eat and

          7  socialize, not smoke.

          8                 Not a day passes without people

          9  calling ahead to reserve a table as far from the bar

         10  as possible to avoid the smoke. More and more the

         11  four tables where smoking is allowed are empty.

         12  Non-smokers do not want to take a chance and sit

         13  there because a smoker may come in and that would

         14  ruin their meal.

         15                 The reason I am here today is because

         16  I think this smoking ban will be good for business.

         17  Smoking is not allowed in any restaurant. It puts

         18  every restaurant in New York City on a level playing

         19  field, where the only thing that matters to the

         20  diner is the food and the service. Those are the

         21  factors you're supposed to consider when going to a

         22  restaurant.

         23                 As I mentioned earlier, Paul and

         24  Jimmy's is a family owned and operated restaurant.

         25  By passing this law I'm not only asking you to
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          2  protect my employees, but I'm asking you to protect

          3  my family - my husband Lou, my daughters Marissa and

          4  Lauren and my son Greg.

          5                 We spent a lot of time --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Can you sum up?

          7                 MS. AZZOLINI: Okay.

          8                 We spent a lot of time when our kids

          9  were younger teaching them the dangers of smoking.

         10  It all just seems like such a waste of time if

         11  they're inhaling so much smoke anyway.

         12                 Everyone should have the right to

         13  breathe clean air at work. Please pass this

         14  legislation and level the playing field once and for

         15  all, my family's health depends on it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         17                 MS. BIDO: I'm sorry.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That's okay.

         19                 MS. BIDO: Good afternoon, Madam Chair

         20  Quinn, and City Council Members. I am honored to be

         21  here today representing the New York City Coalition

         22  for a Smoke-Free City. On behalf of the Coalition's

         23  250 plus diverse members, I applaud you today for

         24  your efforts. You have demonstrated your capacity

         25  for compassion and leadership by producing a bill
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          2  that protects New York City, all of New York City's

          3  workers from the indisputable hazards of secondhand

          4  smoke.

          5                 We have known for many years that

          6  cigarettes are the leading cause for preventable

          7  death among Americans. We lose more than 400,000

          8  individuals each year to tobacco use. We know that

          9  those who don't smoke who are regularly exposed to

         10  the cigarette smoke of others while doing their jobs

         11  are also at increased risk for cancer, heart

         12  disease, lung disease and a host of other chronic

         13  ailments, like me, I'm an asthmatic, and I cannot go

         14  out and enjoy the night because I can't breathe that

         15  air.

         16                 As we know and accept these facts to

         17  be true, there is only one socially responsible

         18  course of action, and that is to make sure that no

         19  one is forced to breathe the cigarette smoke of

         20  others while simply doing their job. Protecting

         21  workers is the right thing to do, and now is the

         22  right time to do it.

         23                 A significant number of those holding

         24  jobs with high exposure to secondhand smoke are

         25  low-income and all the newly emigrate residents of
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          2  our community. They often lack employment options

          3  and adequate health care coverage, compounding the

          4  victimization cuts by on the job secondhand smoke

          5  exposure. Even worse, many either don't know the

          6  hazards or are too afraid of losing their jobs to

          7  protect those conditions. We must speak and act for

          8  them, that's you and me.

          9                 I am a health advocate, a community

         10  resident, and I'm also a mother, just like you are a

         11  daughter of Ms. Clarke, our late, or our past -- you

         12  know, you inherited your mother's seat. Knowing that

         13  tobacco smoke takes the lives of my community

         14  members is simply not acceptable. Because I care. I

         15  have worked to educate the adults and children in my

         16  community about the truth or consequences of

         17  tobacco, using tobacco smoke.

         18                 Research and experience, however,

         19  indicates that even -- that an addictive and heavily

         20  marketed product, as we know like tobacco, requires

         21  more than education to save lives. We know this. It

         22  requires strong, effective, regulatory policy, the

         23  kind that you're capable of doing. By offering New

         24  Yorkers a strong policy to protect workers from the

         25  harmful effect of secondhand smoke -- I will wrap it
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          2  up -- like Intro. 256-A you uphold the most basic

          3  right of all for both our long-term and new

          4  residents the basic right to breathe.

          5                 Many of you have faced hard criticism

          6  from some constituents and colleagues, in order to

          7  protect workers. For maintaining your courage and

          8  tenacity in the face of opposing forces, you have

          9  our deepest appreciation and respect. I take my hat

         10  off to you. There is nothing more honorable than

         11  working to preserve the lives and safety of others.

         12  Protecting workers is the right thing to do, and we

         13  need to do it now.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 Council Member Clarke.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you,

         19  Madam Chair. And just for the record, I didn't

         20  inherit my seat, I ran for it.

         21                 MS. BIDO: That's good.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Just to follow

         23  up with the owner of Paul and Jimmy's, is your

         24  establishment currently a smoking establishment?

         25                 MS. AZZOLINI: We have 75 seats,
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          2  between 60 of those seats, and the rest there is a

          3  bar area, so the current law allows us to allow

          4  smoking in the area just past the bar, so that those

          5  are --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: And you

          7  currently allow that?

          8                 MS. AZZOLINI: We do.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay. I'm just

         10  trying to get my thinking around the fact that you

         11  currently allow smoking in your establishment when

         12  you have a free will choice.

         13                 MS. AZZOLINI: Right.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: To establish

         15  or to have an establishment with no smoking.

         16                 MS. AZZOLINI: Right.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Right?

         18                 MS. AZZOLINI: And my --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I'm just

         20  trying to get my thinking around the fact that --

         21  let me ask another question, where is your business

         22  located?

         23                 MS. AZZOLINI: East 18th Street.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Manhattan?

         25                 MS. AZZOLINI: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay.

          3                 So, is this a matter of competition

          4  for you while you keep smoking?

          5                 MS. AZZOLINI: No.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: In your

          7  establishment?

          8                 MS. AZZOLINI: No, it's not. Honestly

          9  --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I'm beginning

         11  to get your response.

         12                 MS. AZZOLINI: Okay.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: How long have

         14  you had smoking in your establishment?

         15                 MS. AZZOLINI: For 52 years.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: For 52 years

         17  you've had smoking in your establishment and you

         18  hate smoking.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Could I just ask

         20  the witness, could you bring the mic a little closer

         21  to your mouth? I'm having trouble hearing the

         22  answer. Excuse me.

         23                 MS. AZZOLINI: I actually haven't been

         24  there for 52 years. I've only worked there for

         25  three. My husband and I have owned it for six and
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          2  he's been there for 27 years.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay. So, it's

          4  been the tradition of the establishment that you own

          5  to allow smoking. You and your family hate smoking,

          6  and at no point in time, you didn't want to just

          7  say, you know, why don't we take it upon ourselves

          8  to end smoking? You feel that us implementing this

          9  law is what it takes for you who already hates

         10  smoking to do that? Is that what -- your testimony

         11  is sort of inconsistent with your philosophy and

         12  what your practice is.

         13                 MS. AZZOLINI: Well, not really, if

         14  you let me explain.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: And what I'm

         16  trying to get from testimony and from all that is

         17  taking place around this, around this debate, is a

         18  realistic rationale for why this is necessary, okay?

         19                 And I understand smoking cessation

         20  and I understand the effects of secondhand smoke,

         21  believe me I do, and you have said a compelling

         22  statement about secondhand smoke and your employees,

         23  yet you haven't even voluntarily chosen to do that

         24  at your own establishment. So, I'm just trying to

         25  get a sense of, I'm trying to get a sense of where
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          2  you're coming from.

          3                 MS. AZZOLINI: Okay, we are a

          4  neighborhood restaurant. My husband and I have had

          5  this discussion probably a few times a week, he

          6  comes home from work the next day his eyes are red,

          7  he's got a sore throat and I beg him to eliminate

          8  the smoking.

          9                 We have customers who are so close to

         10  our family, we've been there for a really long time,

         11  these people come in, some of them three, four,

         12  five, six, seven nights a week, they bring in

         13  people, they smoke. They would consider it an insult

         14  if we asked them not to smoke in our restaurant.

         15  They take that as being, you know, their home.

         16                 Now, I have spoken to all of them,

         17  like I said, and some are a little hesitant about

         18  it, but I know they'll come around, they love to

         19  eat. They're not going to stay home and cook. New

         20  Yorkers don't like to cook. So, they will be back.

         21                 The handful that might say now, oh,

         22  no, we need to smoke, they will be back. The other

         23  people who I thought were die-hard smokers, I mean I

         24  have one woman who comes in and she must go through

         25  a pack a day, it's awful to have the smell of that
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          2  all over you and just inhaling it. I asked her and

          3  she said, oh, I'll be back. I fly to Europe, I go to

          4  plays, I go to the Opera, I go everywhere else in

          5  New York City and there's no smoking allowed, I can

          6  sit here and enjoy a good meal for an hour, two

          7  hours, without a cigarette.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: What I'm

          9  trying to get at, and I understand what you're

         10  saying.

         11                 MS. AZZOLINI: They would be insulted

         12  if we asked them not to smoke. It's not something

         13  that really --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: So, you're

         15  saying you would be insulted, so what you're looking

         16  for is cover here. You need a law that enables you

         17  not to be insulted in order for you to do something

         18  that you and your family despise and hate and that

         19  protects your workers.

         20                 MS. AZZOLINI: Well, our workers do

         21  not smoke in our restaurant.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: No, the issue

         23  here is secondhand smoke. Your husband's eyes are

         24  runny and red, your workers are inhaling this for

         25  over 52 years now, and --
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          2                 MS. AZZOLINI: Well, nobody has been

          3  there for 52 years. Our longest employee is 30

          4  years.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: But it's the

          6  tradition within that establishment to allow

          7  smoking.

          8                 MS. AZZOLINI: But times are changing.

          9  I smoked --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: No, I

         11  understand that times are changing, but you didn't

         12  effect the change. You're asking us to effect the

         13  change?

         14                 MS. AZZOLINI: Well, it's not our

         15  responsibility to make certain changes. I really --

         16  I believe we should be on a level playing ground

         17  with all other restaurants.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay, thank

         19  you.

         20                 MS. AZZOLINI: You know.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. I just

         22  want to say, Council member Clarke, I wasn't here

         23  for the inherited comment, so I don't know the

         24  context, but I can certainly say not only did you

         25  not inherit the seat, it was actually a very, very,
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          2  very difficult crowded field that you won your seat

          3  in. So, I don't know the context of the comment, but

          4  if there is any confusion about that, there is 50

          5  others of us who could explain to anyone who is

          6  confused about how much you won and how much you've

          7  retained the seat as an individual yourself who

          8  happens to be related to somebody named Una Clarke,

          9  who I was lucky enough to serve with briefly.

         10                 Council Member Sears.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

         12  Madam Chair.

         13                 I just have one question. With your

         14  passion for non-smoking, do you not feel that the

         15  way these amendments are with the exemptions that

         16  exist, that that would not pose a major problem to

         17  your business?

         18                 MS. AZZOLINI: I don't feel there

         19  would be any problem to our business.

         20                 I actually think our business would

         21  increase, because there are people that don't bring

         22  their children in because of the amount of smoke,

         23  they come in, you know, before 6:00 at night just to

         24  avoid the amount of smoke that will accumulate.

         25  We're small, we only seat 75 people, so you know,
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          2  you get even four people smoking at the bar area,

          3  it's going to drift into the rest of the dining

          4  room, and it really, I think it will help our

          5  business. That's my feeling, and I honestly from my

          6  heart believe that.

          7                 It will allow people who aren't able,

          8  like this woman sitting next to me, to go out and

          9  enjoy a good meal, because they have asthma or

         10  whatever illness and they'll be able to come out

         11  again and enjoy themselves at restaurants. They

         12  should have the right to do that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well, there are

         14  non-smoking areas now.

         15                 MS. AZZOLINI: We have a non-smoking

         16  area in our restaurant. Twenty, no, 18 of our tables

         17  are non-smoking.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Are they filled

         19  all the time?

         20                 MS. AZZOLINI: All the time. There are

         21  times when our four tables in the front, there are

         22  many times they are filled, but there is more and

         23  more times that those tables are empty. People don't

         24  want to sit there if they don't smoke, because I

         25  warn them if you want to sit there -- and they're
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          2  the best tables in the house because they overlook

          3  the street, which is really nice up there, and then

          4  I have to warn them if somebody comes here and wants

          5  to smoke, they are permitted to smoke here.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Right.

          7                 MS. AZZOLINI: And they choose then

          8  not to sit there. They'll wait for a table rather

          9  than risk having a smoker sitting next to them.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.

         11                 MS. AZZOLINI: You're welcome.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         13  Stewart.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: My question

         15  really goes to any one of the members on the panel

         16  there.

         17                 With the current exemption of the

         18  cigar bars and the clubs, to pass this bill right

         19  now, don't you think that would be wrong to have to

         20  do that? Don't you think it would be wrong to give

         21  exception to these bars in the clubs?

         22                 MR. BATISTA: On behalf of the

         23  American Cancer Society, we would like smoking

         24  nowhere, basically. So our official position is that

         25  all along we've been very consistent. We've been
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          2  focused on protecting the lives of the employees in

          3  any of these establishments. So, obviously, this is

          4  the best law that we could get and we're actually

          5  very happy with this law, but, you know, our

          6  official position is that we would not allow smoking

          7  in any establishment. That's our official position.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But I get the

          9  impression awhile ago that you were gung ho on the

         10  current law right now. You want it to pass right

         11  away. But my feeling is that this is wrong to have

         12  the exemption for clubs and the bars because it's a

         13  form of discrimination and also if you want to

         14  correct the problem, why make these exceptions? Is

         15  this because of a special interest or something like

         16  that?

         17                 MR. BATISTA: What made us comfortable

         18  about this seven or eight or whatever the number is

         19  was that in the law the provision is that you

         20  cannot, if you chose not to be in that business

         21  anymore, if you decide you're going to retire, and

         22  you own one of those establishments, you cannot sell

         23  that establishment to somebody else. Theoretically

         24  what happens is that you start dwindling down that

         25  number and eventually we believe that that number
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          2  will go down to zero.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But it could

          4  be a business that stays in the family for the next

          5  50, 100 years.

          6                 MR. BATISTA: Well, according to my

          7  interpretation of the law is that it cannot be

          8  passed down that way, but I could be wrong there.

          9  Not 100 percent sure. I would defer it to you guys.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         12  Rivera.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Yes. Actually

         14  it is true that the licenses and the grandfathering

         15  doesn't pass down from family member to family

         16  member, the cigar lounge owner ceases to live, that

         17  exemption will be lifted.

         18                 First, I would like to say that we

         19  have here in the City of New York, and within this

         20  Chambers, a lot of testimony, you know, in favor of

         21  and against of this current bill, and I love New

         22  York, as all of us do, and I think that we have, in

         23  the process of loving New York and working in New

         24  York, we have a difficult job of facing a large and

         25  diverse arena of opinions and ideas.
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          2                 What I do believe is that a couple of

          3  months ago the Mayor proposed 256, which a lot of us

          4  couldn't stomach. And what I do believe and what I

          5  do know is that this Council has worked hard in

          6  these couple of months, has studied the issue, has

          7  held hearings, has had discussions for both sides

          8  with a lot of different individuals to see how we

          9  can come up with a compromise.

         10                 In the past couple of months what

         11  we've come up with is something somewhat of a

         12  balance in reference towards cigar lounges, in

         13  reference towards, you know, some of the

         14  operator/owner bars and lounges and we've heard a

         15  lot of arguments.

         16                 Now, we haven't made a decision yet,

         17  but I think we're in the process of making that

         18  decision, and we have in front of us a compromise

         19  that I feel is one step forward from the 256. It is

         20  a step forward, and it can be considered as a study

         21  process which is now within the next three years we

         22  can actually look over how effective are these

         23  procedures, these enacted amendments and then

         24  whatnot and then we can come back in three years to

         25  decide whether or not it is effective.
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          2                 But I do believe this body has dealt

          3  with the difficult opinions on the issue, the very

          4  diverse opinions that we are moving in the right

          5  direction by having a compromise, and I would like

          6  to beg to differ, I would believe that these

          7  compromises are a drastic step within the right

          8  direction. I think that the Mayor felt that he is

          9  losing because we are enacting these compromises,

         10  and I think that is a victory for the Council

         11  because we are getting something that we feel the

         12  Council and the City of New York can really benefit

         13  from, and if we see that in three years that these

         14  amendments aren't good, then we will bring it back

         15  to the Council and decide whether or not it is

         16  something that we have to repeal or move forward in

         17  some form or direction, but at least we may have a

         18  study period, and I think that both sides have had

         19  compelling arguments on the issue, and I think

         20  that's why we are here today to once again hear the

         21  arguments but move forward on a compromise. Thank

         22  you.

         23                 MS. BIDO: May I say a comment,

         24  please?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure.
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          2                 MS. BIDO: I just wanted to say to

          3  Council Member Clarke I didn't mean that you

          4  inherited the seat. Nobody inherited the seat, but

          5  you inherited the grace and the beauty that your

          6  mother did bring into it with the big hats and all

          7  the colorful things. So, I apologize if it came out

          8  wrong, I didn't mean for you to think that I say

          9  that you inherited the seat. Of course, that's not

         10  what I meant, okay? We're here all working together.

         11  I worked with her before, and I apologize if at all

         12  I really, you know, it came out the wrong way, okay?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Thank

         14  you. I think that's all the questions for this

         15  panel.

         16                 Next is going to be Chuck Hunt, John

         17  Mulvey, Audrey Silk and Andy Breslin. They will be

         18  followed by the final pre-scheduled panel, which is

         19  Jody Rudin, Ann Arlan, Neil Schlager and Tanya

         20  Smothers.

         21                 Following that panel, which would be

         22  panel number five, we'll be taking testimony from

         23  the public who was not previously scheduled. Those

         24  folks should make sure you get a slip from the

         25  Sergeant.
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          2                 Please make sure you sign pro or con

          3  because otherwise we'll call you last with a group

          4  of folks who haven't noted whether you're pro or

          5  con. If you don't have an opinion, note that too.

          6                 If folks could try to exit as quietly

          7  as possible, because we want to move things along so

          8  people don't have to spend all afternoon here. Thank

          9  you.

         10                 Whatever order you'd like to go in,

         11  feel free.

         12                 MR. HUNT: Madam Chair, members of the

         13  Committee, good afternoon. I am Chuck Hunt,

         14  Executive Vice President of the Greater New York

         15  City Chapters of the New York State Restaurant

         16  Association.

         17                 The Association is a trade

         18  association representing 2,500 restaurant and food

         19  service operations within the five boroughs of New

         20  York City.

         21                 Most of these operations serve

         22  alcoholic beverages, and most concurrently

         23  accommodate their smoking patrons in the bar areas

         24  of the restaurant.

         25                 Following Mayor Bloomberg's
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          2  announcement in August of his proposal to prohibit

          3  smoking in all public places and places of

          4  employment in the City, our Association office was

          5  besieged with calls from journalists from around the

          6  world asking how New York's restaurants were

          7  reacting to a possible total smoking ban.

          8                 Realizing that the Mayor's proposal

          9  went beyond any previous measures, in order to

         10  properly convey the feelings of our members, I

         11  conducted a short and simple poll. Essentially I

         12  asked should we support or oppose this ban?

         13                 I appeared before this Committee on

         14  October 10th at the first hearing and reported the

         15  results of the poll. Sixty-five percent in

         16  opposition, 33 percent in support. Of those in

         17  support, a great many indicated they were in favor

         18  of a ban only if it were an absolute ban affecting

         19  all types of establishments equally.

         20                 As you know, restaurants have

         21  historically opposed governmentally imposed smoking

         22  regulations. Our position has not changed.

         23                 We feel that our customers should be

         24  able to make a choice to patronize or not patronize

         25  a restaurant based on its smoking policy.
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          2                 Our opposition has also been based on

          3  the premise that we are in the hospitality business

          4  and we want to be able to accommodate both

          5  non-smoking patrons and those who do choose to

          6  smoke.

          7                 The current law, while limiting,

          8  still permits that. As our poll indicated, the

          9  majority of our members prefer to see that law left

         10  in force. The Mayor and his Commissioner of Health

         11  have presented a bill as a means to protect the

         12  City's 140,000 restaurant and bar workers from

         13  dangers of environmental and tobacco smoke.

         14                 I should point out that despite the

         15  health risks, a great many of them have contacted us

         16  to let us know they have no objection to working in

         17  the smoking sections of their places of employment.

         18  In fact, some prefer to.

         19                 Perhaps after the debates and

         20  discussions have taken place since this bill's

         21  introduction, some of the original naysayers may

         22  have revised their positions. But those who have

         23  capitulated have all insisted that it could only

         24  work if it were indeed a total ban.

         25                 The amended proposal before you
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          2  contains exceptions that are troubling to many

          3  restaurateurs, if you have heard this morning. We

          4  realize that political pressures have been brought

          5  about to bear, brought to bear forcing the need for

          6  a compromise.

          7                 However, the provisions of this bill

          8  will create an enforcement nightmare. They don't

          9  meet the level playing field standards hoped for by

         10  many of the bill's proponents, and except for the

         11  cigar bars, it will be extremely difficult, if not

         12  impossible, to meet the criteria required to be

         13  eligible for exemption from the ban.

         14                 Honorable ladies and gentlemen, I

         15  once again urge you to rethink this matter in light

         16  of the current fragile economic conditions of many

         17  of the city's restaurants and bars.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Chuck, if you

         19  could sum up, please.

         20                 MR. HUNT: This is it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Oh, great.

         22                 MR. HUNT: We ask that you please

         23  leave well enough alone. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I will say this

         25  for folks, although Chuck is obviously not happy
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          2  about the bill, he is a step ahead of the hearing we

          3  were at yesterday where the Commissioner for

          4  Consumer Affairs, as she was describing wildly

          5  higher fees for Chuck's members kept saying, "and

          6  Chuck Hunt said it was okay" and "Chuck Hunt said it

          7  was okay" which was of course not at all the

          8  conversation they had. So, that was cleared up on

          9  the record, though at least that didn't happen

         10  today.

         11                 MR. HUNT: Thank you, Madam Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You're thanking me

         13  for bringing it up again, right?

         14                 Who ever would like to go next.

         15                 MR. MULVEY: My name is John Mulvey,

         16  and I am from the Staten Island Restaurant and

         17  Tavern Association.

         18                 I am here to convey our industry's

         19  disappointment with the Council's decision to move

         20  on Intro. 256-A. Our industry has requested that

         21  this Committee not move on this bill because it will

         22  surely hurt our businesses. These claims have been

         23  dismissed.

         24                 I am here to ask the Committee to

         25  require a commission to further investigate the
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          2  following areas: Air filtration, ventilation,

          3  economics and quality of life.

          4                 This commission should represent all

          5  adverse opinions, for example, members of the

          6  Administration, this Council, Restaurant and Tavern

          7  Industry, and representatives of the American Cancer

          8  Society.

          9                 This week I e-mailed a briefing book

         10  to every City Council member. This book shows the

         11  economic impact of smoking bans across the country.

         12  It also shows the concerns of local community

         13  boards.

         14                 Some examples of what is inside of

         15  this book is bars are more than twice as likely to

         16  experience revenue decline than restaurants.

         17                 The California Board of Equalization

         18  says that sales tax from restaurants in California

         19  grew 15 percent slower than the rest of the economy.

         20                 Restaurant sales grew only three

         21  percent per year in California, as compared to a six

         22  percent increase nationwide.

         23                 In Massachusetts there were 21

         24  percent declines in restaurant jobs. According to

         25  the Brewers of Ontario, on-premise beer sales
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          2  dropped 10.5 percent during the first ten months of

          3  their ban.

          4                 Community boards across the City, in

          5  particular, Community Board 2 in Queens, Community

          6  Boards 3, 5 and 7 in Manhattan, and Community Board

          7  1 on Staten Island, have denounced this ban.

          8                 Community Board 1 of Staten Island

          9  said that it caused mayhem on a regular day-by-day

         10  night-by-night basis. I respectfully request that

         11  this Committee further investigate our economic

         12  facts and air filtration issues before putting the

         13  small businessman at risk.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         16                 MR. BRESLIN: Madam Chairlady,

         17  remaining Council members. My name is Andrew

         18  Breslin. I am the owner of four bars and restaurants

         19  in New York City, two of which are in Greenwich

         20  Village and two of which are in Sunnyside in Queens.

         21                 I would like to think of myself that

         22  I run clean, attractive, well-operated managed

         23  establishments and I have 50 plus employees,

         24  probably about 20 part-time employees. I've come

         25  here today because it seems to me the Mayor and the
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          2  City Council have completely lost site of the

          3  integral part that a simple tavern owner and

          4  establishments play in the neighborhoods and

          5  communities of this great City.

          6                 To not sound like a broken record,

          7  but to give an example, in one of my stores, one of

          8  the many charitable events that I run, together with

          9  my staff, we raise funds to send 50 underprivileged

         10  children to summer camp, Camp Qwanis, every year for

         11  the past ten years.

         12                 Out of the City's sweltering heat,

         13  they send us little postcards thanking us for what

         14  we do, and for the opportunity they otherwise would

         15  not have had. Sorry, I'm not used to speaking

         16  publicly.

         17                 Okay. There are a million stories

         18  such as this. I could go on and go on. Our places of

         19  business are for the overworked, underpaid and

         20  overtaxed New Yorkers come to unwind, to be wined,

         21  dined, entertained and to mingle with the thousands

         22  of tourists who once thought this was a cruel city.

         23                 Our places of business are where you

         24  were christened, bar mitzvah'd and mourned. We're a

         25  vital part of every community in this great City.
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          2                 You keep regulating and legislating

          3  us, we will go out of business. Every time a health

          4  inspector comes through my door, it's three to

          5  four-hundred dollars. Every time a nightclub task

          6  force member comes through my door, disrupting my

          7  business, making me feel like a criminal; why?

          8  Because two people at the bar are dancing.

          9                 I look out my window of one of my

         10  stores in Greenwich Village and see where the great

         11  Village Gate once was, that's now replaced by a CVS

         12  pharmacy.

         13                 I ask you which is better for the

         14  neighborhood, CVS pharmacy or the great Village Gate

         15  that stood for many years?

         16                 If this law is passed, my peers in

         17  places where it already has been passed, tell me

         18  they see as much as a 30 percent less, loss in

         19  revenue. In Ottawa beer sales alone dropped 12 and a

         20  half percent in the first six months. I know all it

         21  takes for me to say good-bye, and to have the

         22  parents of those 50 children send their postcards to

         23  you, Council members, and to Mayor Bloomberg, is a

         24  drop of about 20 percent.

         25                 Deputy Mayor Doctoroff not only
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          2  sounded very like Mayor Bloomberg today, he also

          3  seems to be as out of touch.

          4                 He talked of numerous times

          5  revisiting this bill. I think before a bill should

          6  be passed we should study it fully and understand

          7  the impacts of it, not revisit it three years from

          8  now.

          9                 Not to say that I wholly agree with

         10  Mr. Toussant, but I do understand where he's coming

         11  from, and I would like to say good-bye and good

         12  riddens to Mayor Bloomberg.

         13                 MS. SILK: I feel I'm wasting time

         14  introducing myself --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Well, you still

         16  need to do it for the record. Is the mic on?

         17                 MS. SILK: Yes, I'll bring it closer.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         19                 MS. SILK: My name is Audrey Silk. I

         20  am from New York City Citizens Lobby Against Smoker

         21  Harassment. I represent the smokers everyone else

         22  seems to want to speak for, and who are not finding

         23  their interests of any concern to their

         24  representatives.

         25                 This amended bill is a joke and an
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          2  insult. Three minutes to point out all the lies and

          3  half-truths you've heard so far today is unfair,

          4  that because I'm in the minority it's okay to

          5  impress me. This bill and the ideology that led to

          6  it are malicious, vindictive, punitive and hateful.

          7                 When anyone in the anti-smokers camp

          8  says things like "they'll get used to it" it's the

          9  same as the warden saying that prisoners will get

         10  used to just having bread. Rewriting a bill with

         11  conditions that can never be met and having the

         12  nerve to call it amended is malicious.

         13                 Viciously knowing it can't be done

         14  and hoping it isn't. When our own leaders are raving

         15  about smokers is public enemy number one, it gives

         16  ammunition, permission to fanatics to lash out

         17  physically. Smokers have already been attacked on

         18  the street. Robert Switten who had no history of

         19  disciplinary problems was fired at Bloomberg's

         20  urging because he smoked. He is the first victim of

         21  the New York City war on smokers, an entire family

         22  has been ruined because of hate.

         23                 It's absolutely comical that you are

         24  treating cigarette smoke like it's the most toxic

         25  substance known to man.
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          2                 Yesterday, the American Council on

          3  Science and Health laughed with me. They wrote in an

          4  article who exactly are these 1,000 New Yorkers

          5  whose deaths Mayor Bloomberg claims will be

          6  prevented by his legislation?

          7                 The estimate of 1,000 deaths

          8  prevented is patently absurd. There is no evidence

          9  that any New Yorker, patron or employee, has ever

         10  died as a result of exposure to smoke in a bar or a

         11  restaurant.

         12                 This legislation has nothing to do

         13  with protecting the health of others, the majority

         14  of whom wish you'd stay the hell out of their

         15  business while they try to make tips.

         16                 Educated men and women write about

         17  this every day and concluded there's a war on

         18  smokers, not on smoke.

         19                 The social engineering is driving you

         20  to ruin the livelihoods of so many as if they are

         21  expendable collateral damage in this intolerant war

         22  on smokers.

         23                 Ontario brewers have lost millions

         24  immediately following Munter's ban (phonetic). San

         25  Francisco's Department of Health recently found that
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          2  only 40 percent of bars are in compliance with

          3  California's ban. Absolute prohibition brings with

          4  it absolute defiance.

          5                 A recent Quinnepiac poll found that

          6  only half of New Yorkers approve of this bill, not

          7  73 percent the anti-smokers inflate, with 64 percent

          8  of smokers strongly opposed.

          9                 Across the country the anti-smoking

         10  crusaders has been crushed in towns and cities who

         11  have law-makers who believe freedom of choices

         12  prevail and have said no to bans.

         13                 In our great city we would hope you

         14  would show the same courage, but, no, you're going

         15  to appease the man who is blowing through here for

         16  only four short years and disrupt the lives of

         17  everyone who have put down lifelong roots because he

         18  threatens 51 people while millions pay the

         19  consequence. Bloomberg is no New Yorker. He's not

         20  even a Mets fan. He's a Boston Red Socks fan.

         21                 I hope I get an extra ten seconds for

         22  that. He'll be gone and we'll be left to suffer with

         23  his legacy --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: As a fellow Met

         25  fan I'll give you a couple more seconds.
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          2                 MS. SILK: I appreciate it. He'll be

          3  gone and we'll be left to suffer with his legacy

          4  that falls at your feet.

          5                 Reject Intro. 256-A, B, C through Z

          6  completely. And I might add that it appears, it

          7  appears it is the unelected Department of Health

          8  Commissioner who has written this bill and pushing

          9  it on all of us.

         10                 When an owner who has gone

         11  non-smoking testifies how wonderful business has

         12  been, it proves our case, not theirs. It proves that

         13  choice works.

         14                 The '95 ban left choice for all. This

         15  ban does not. When customers have a choice of where

         16  to go everyone benefits and business owners have a

         17  choice to go non-smoking, if that's what they want

         18  to do. Who is stopping them? The level playing field

         19  means everyone suffers the same. It's not a nice

         20  thing as is implied, it's vindictive.

         21                 We've bought you 6,000 signatures of

         22  people who oppose this ban. I'm sure far many more

         23  than the number of phone calls received supporting

         24  it, but when a group is targeted for punishment, I

         25  guess it doesn't matter how many there are.
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          2                 Choosing to oppose a law based on the

          3  biggest fraud of our time to satisfy a false

          4  impression when no one's health is at risk is

          5  malicious.

          6                 With the approval of this bill you

          7  will have turned over the greatest City in the world

          8  to the zealots and the hypochondriacs. The idea

          9  might have been Bloomberg's but he can't do it

         10  without you --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Audrey, if you can

         12  sum up?

         13                 MS. SILK: One sentence more.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         15                 MS. SILK: The idea might have been

         16  Bloomberg's but he can't do without you. This is

         17  ultimately your responsibility. You'll be the ones

         18  who have to answer to it. Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         20                 I don't believe there are any

         21  questions for this panel. Thank you.

         22                 Next we're going to hear from Jody

         23  Rudin, Ann Arlen, Dr. Neil Schluger and Tanya

         24  Smothers. Those, again, are the last panel that was

         25  scheduled prior to the hearing.
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          2                 If you would like to testify, please

          3  make sure you see one of the Sergeants for a slip

          4  and please note your position on the bill.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 Actually, it's just the three of you.

          7  Ms. Arlen is not here for some reason. So, whoever

          8  would like to go first should go first.

          9                 MS. RUDIN: Good afternoon,

         10  Chairperson Quinn and the members of the Health

         11  Committee. My name is Jody Rudin, the New York City

         12  Issues Organizer at Housing Works, and I am here to

         13  provide testimony on behalf of my organization.

         14                 With the concurrence of homeless and

         15  formerly homeless people living with AIDS at Housing

         16  Works and other AIDS service organizations here in

         17  New York City, I would like to thank all of you for

         18  your stellar work on this important piece of this

         19  legislation.

         20                 We are pleased with the provisions in

         21  Intro. 256-A that continue to allow clients of

         22  residential health care facilities and day treatment

         23  programs to smoke within the confines of fully

         24  enclosed and adequately ventilated smoking rooms.

         25                 The incorporation of these amendments
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          2  recognizes and mitigates some of the problematic

          3  features of the original legislation.

          4                 As you may know, Housing Works is the

          5  nation's largest minority controlled AIDS Service

          6  organization. Our mission is to reach the most

          7  vulnerable and underserved among those affected by

          8  the AIDS epidemic in New York City, primarily

          9  homeless persons of color, positive HIV diagnoses

         10  are complicated by histories of chronic mental

         11  illness and chemical dependence.

         12                 Many of the clients we serve in our

         13  three adult day health care facilities are diagnosed

         14  with not only HIV and AIDS, but with substance abuse

         15  and mental health issues as well, and 90 percent of

         16  our clients smoke tobacco.

         17                 We do offer smoking cessation

         18  opportunities and again would like to reiterate that

         19  we would like to offer more if the City would use

         20  the tobacco settlement money for tobacco prevention

         21  programs. However, many of our clients are grappling

         22  with other health and mental health issues. In fact,

         23  while admittedly a health menace, the use of tobacco

         24  is recognized as an important aspect of

         25  resocialization among those who have lived unstable
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          2  lives.

          3                 It also often enables our clients to

          4  wean themselves from more severe and immediately

          5  threatening addictions. As an organization that

          6  embraces harm reduction principles, we have a

          7  responsibility to work with our clients where

          8  they're at in a matter that reduces harm to

          9  themselves and others. These many factors help

         10  explain why so many of our clients smoke cigarettes.

         11                 To accommodate this reality in a

         12  manner that does not put any staff and clients'

         13  health at risk, we have designed each of our

         14  facilities with an enclosed separately ventilated

         15  smoking room. These smoking rooms are regulated in

         16  such a way to ensure that nobody runs the risk of

         17  contamination by secondhand smoke. They are

         18  monitored by a stringent schedule that disallows

         19  smoking at certain key hours when staff may be

         20  required to enter for cleaning purposes.

         21                 We at Housing Works agree with Mayor

         22  Bloomberg, the desire of an individual to smoke

         23  anywhere, any time, should not trump the rights of

         24  others to breathe clean air in at the workplace, and

         25  we take pride in our smoke-free air.
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          2                 In addition, we would like to thank

          3  the Administration for agreeing with this amended

          4  bill. In doing so, they, too, recognize that

          5  substance abusers who may also be struggling --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Jody, you need to

          7  sum up.

          8                 MS. RUDIN: Okay.

          9                 Who may also be struggling with a

         10  variety of comorbidities, including mental illness

         11  and homelessness, must first be given the time and

         12  space to diminish the devastating impacts of drug

         13  addiction before they begin to address their tobacco

         14  use.

         15                 This new legislation offers a modicum

         16  of support to many of our most vulnerable and

         17  marginalized New Yorkers --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Ms. Rudin, you

         19  need to sum up.

         20                 MS. RUDIN:   Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Jody used to work

         22  in my office, so I wouldn't want to be accused of

         23  giving her too much time.

         24                 Next witness.

         25                 MS. SMOTHERS: Good afternoon.
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          2                 My name is Tonya Smothers, and I live

          3  in Council Member Katz' district. I started

          4  bartending in 1992 and loved the work immediately. I

          5  was good at it and made a good living. Eventually,

          6  though, I was forced to quit because of doctors'

          7  orders. My lungs just couldn't take the secondhand

          8  smoke.

          9                 Right now you are weighing a measure

         10  that would ban smoking in nearly all workplaces,

         11  including bars and restaurants. Given my personal

         12  experience, I'm strongly supporting it. I don't

         13  think any worker should have to sell their health to

         14  earn a paycheck.

         15                 Like many people in the business, I

         16  got my first bartending job out of economic

         17  necessity. At 21 I gained custody of my 14-year-old

         18  sister, in need of money to be able to support the

         19  both of us. Today my sister lives in Atlanta and

         20  makes a good living as a pastry chef, and I'm proud

         21  of what she's accomplished, and I'm thankful that I

         22  earned enough money to help her reach her goals, but

         23  working in smoky bars took a real toll on my health.

         24                 Knowing what I know now, I wouldn't

         25  do it again. No one should have to. We're all
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          2  familiar with bartending. It may seem simple. You

          3  pour a drink. But for those like me who are

          4  interested in the history of wine and spirits and

          5  the libations that can be created from them, the job

          6  is much more.

          7                 I love the creative aspect, and enjoy

          8  being a friendly face behind the bar that just might

          9  teach you the difference between bourbon and

         10  Tennessee whiskey. As a non-smoker looking for

         11  bartending work, I made it a point to apply for jobs

         12  in places with the least amount of smoke possible.

         13  But even in establishments with fewer smokers, the

         14  secondhand smoke had a serious affect on my

         15  breathing.

         16                 I also tried to find work in places

         17  with non-smoking sections, however, the bar area

         18  itself was rarely smoke-free. Each time I tried to

         19  explain to employers that I really loved my job, but

         20  struggled with the secondhand smoke, I was told that

         21  smoke was just a part of the business, and maybe I

         22  needed to find some other career. Easy for them to

         23  say but I had someone at home counting on my

         24  financial support.

         25                 Thinking that I could breathe more
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          2  easily during a slower day shift, I took a job

          3  working lunches. I hoped this would do the trick,

          4  but still the smoke affected me. After a short time

          5  I again came down with sinus and upper respiratory

          6  infections that took two weeks to go away.

          7                 My doctor told me the health problems

          8  would continue until I stopped working in

          9  smoke-filled environments.

         10                 Faced with the prospect of a life

         11  filled with breathing problems, I felt like I didn't

         12  have much of a choice and I was forced to quit an

         13  occupation I loved.

         14                 Don't get me wrong, I'm still working

         15  in the industry but not behind the bar. I'm a sales

         16  rep, and I enjoy helping people find what they want,

         17  but it's an unfortunate thing that I don't make

         18  enough, I don't make anywhere near the income I used

         19  to all because I can't deal with other people's

         20  smoke.

         21                 Many people work in the service

         22  industry because they need flexible hours in order

         23  to take care of a loved one or to go to school. Many

         24  others work in the service industry as a second job

         25  to make ends meet.
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          2                 I work in the industry because I

          3  genuinely love it. Personally I support this

          4  legislation. I'm eager to get behind a smoke-free

          5  bar without worrying about getting sick as a result.

          6  Thank you for all your hard work.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Go ahead.

          8                 DR. SCHLUGER: Chairperson Quinn,

          9  members of the City Council, my name is Neil

         10  Schluger, I'm the Clinical Chief of the Division of

         11  Pulmonary, Allergy and Critical Care Medicine at

         12  Columbia University, I'm a practicing physician and

         13  I'm here today as a member of the Board association

         14  of the American Lung Association of the City of New

         15  York representing the Lung Association.

         16                 Thank you for your opportunity to

         17  speak today on behalf of the Lung Association of the

         18  City of New York, as we offer our broad support for

         19  the passage of Intro. 256-A, the Smoke Free

         20  Workplace Act. Protecting workers from the toxic

         21  affects of secondhand smoke has long been a goal of

         22  the Lung Association, and today I'm proud to see the

         23  leadership of New York City take a giant step toward

         24  this mutual aim. The Smoke Free Workplace Act is

         25  strong and comprehensive legislation that clearly

                                                            140

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  puts the health of New York City's workforce first

          3  by eliminating exposure to secondhand smoke in most

          4  workplaces.

          5                 Our friends, families and neighbors

          6  who have been forced to inhale a carcinogenic

          7  byproduct of cigarettes at their places of business,

          8  will be easier as a result of the leadership of the

          9  City Council.

         10                 For the more than 5 million New York

         11  City residents who suffer from lung disease in their

         12  lifetime, we offer our sincere support for this Act.

         13  With its passage, the thousands of residents who

         14  live painfully with emphysema and chronic

         15  obstructive pulmonary disease will no longer have to

         16  live in fear of on-the-job exposure to secondhand

         17  smoke. They will literally breathe easier as they

         18  make their livelihoods.

         19                 For the thousands of New Yorkers who

         20  suffer with asthma, many of whom are forced to seek

         21  emergency medical care after breathing smoke on the

         22  job, we encourage you to pass this bill swiftly and

         23  in its entirety. Secondhand smoke triggers asthma

         24  attacks in people struggling with the disease, and

         25  it is often linked to new cases of asthma in
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          2  previously undiagnosed individuals.

          3                 Perhaps, more importantly, for the

          4  millions of residents and workers who have not yet

          5  suffered from lung disease, we thank you for working

          6  to protect them from the respiratory illnesses and

          7  health complications they could develop as a result

          8  of continued exposure to secondhand smoke in their

          9  workplaces. Their futures will be healthier with the

         10  passage of this act.

         11                 Working with the communities

         12  throughout the City, we hear countless stories of

         13  mothers, fathers, sons and daughters who are

         14  learning firsthand the pain of asthma, lung cancer

         15  and other forms of lung disease. Many individuals go

         16  to jobs where they are exposed to secondhand smoke

         17  and they are made sicker. They lose wages because

         18  they were too ill to work, and their families suffer

         19  the financial and emotional burden of their illness.

         20                 By passing the Smoke-Free Workplace

         21  Act of 2002, you have an opportunity to make a

         22  significant impact on the lives of people before

         23  they reach this point.

         24                 And I'd like to actually address

         25  myself to the comments of several earlier panelists
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          2  who I think belittled the health affects of

          3  secondhand smoke, some of them were referred to as

          4  "hypochondriac." I would address that in two ways:

          5  One is just to point out there are mountains of data

          6  that prove the affects of secondhand smoke; and the

          7  second way I would address it would be to say that

          8  if I could, I would invite anyone to sit with me in

          9  my office when I have to tell someone who has never

         10  smoked a cigarette they have lung cancer from

         11  secondhand smoke, essentially handing them a death

         12  sentence, and I'd invite anyone to sit with me and

         13  tell me or tell anyone that the health affects of

         14  this are not severe.

         15                 So, on behalf of the American Lung

         16  Association of the City of New York, I urge you to

         17  pass Intro. 256-A, because everyone deserves a safe,

         18  healthy, smoke-free workplace. Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         20                 We've been joined by Ann Arlen from

         21  Community Board 2, who I think we may have told

         22  earlier that things were running a little bit

         23  slower, so we're sorry for that confusion. If you

         24  want to catch your breath, we can call you up. Okay,

         25  no pun intended to the Lung Association.
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          2                 Is your mic on? The light should be

          3  off.

          4                 MS. ARLEN: Okay, how's that?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Identify yourself

          6  for the record, please. Thank you.

          7                 MS. ARLEN: Okay. My name is Ann

          8  Arlen. I'm Chair of the Environment Committee of

          9  Community Board 2, Manhattan, and also Vice Chair of

         10  our Board.

         11                 Our Board is the next Board up from

         12  Board 1 where the World Trade Center attack

         13  occurred. We are an easy walk to the World Trade

         14  Center.

         15                 One of the consequences of that is

         16  that our business is down a lot and we have a lot of

         17  nightlife business. We have SoHo, Greenwich Village,

         18  the East Village, Little Italy, part of Chinatown.

         19  So, the decline in business has been a concern to

         20  us. The clubs and restaurants have been down about

         21  30 percent. When we had a look at this smoking ban,

         22  the extension of the smoking ban that was proposed,

         23  we were very concerned about the possible affect on

         24  business, and then as we went through this, we

         25  realized that if we would propose anything else,
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          2  what we would be proposing is to trade the health

          3  and possibly the lives of the people who work in

          4  these nightlife, in the places with the heaviest

          5  concentration of smoking or any concentration of

          6  secondhand smoke. And, so, then it's like, well,

          7  whose lives, how many lives? You know?

          8                 These are the kinds of equations the

          9  tobacco industry makes. We realize that we couldn't

         10  do that.

         11                 It's worth noting that in California

         12  the public referendum that was brought on secondhand

         13  smoke was brought by the wait staff. That public

         14  initiative was launched by people who are waiters

         15  and waitresses, looking to save their own lives. So,

         16  and that passed and they're doing fine out there.

         17                 So, we did pass the original proposed

         18  law. I would say about this compromise that it is

         19  crucial that there be no staff in the places where

         20  there is the negative air pressurization, where

         21  there is the super filtration, because what you will

         22  have is two grades of pay scales. You will have the

         23  people who you might say would do high hazard pay.

         24  They would be willing to subject themselves to the

         25  secondhand smoke, and then you would have everybody
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          2  else, which in effect would defeat the point of the

          3  law.

          4                 So, I understand why this compromise

          5  was made, but I urge you to couch it in terms that

          6  do not allow for staffing. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          8                 Again, I just want to apologize for

          9  the time confusion, Ann.

         10                 MS. ARLEN: That's fine. Thank you,

         11  Chris.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And I don't think

         13  we have any questions for this panel.

         14                 I just want to say, I want to thank

         15  the American Lung Association for some particular

         16  assistance you have given the staff on this and

         17  other matters, and thank Council Member Sears and

         18  Housing Works for information that they gave us and

         19  advice around the treatment center issues, which I

         20  think is an important and good compromise, we

         21  haven't heard any complaints about that yet, and

         22  Council Member Sears really sought to focus the

         23  Committee on that one issue, and Housing Works was

         24  very, very helpful in getting us information to make

         25  sure we had a well written amendment. So, I want to
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          2  thank Housing Works and Jody and Council Member

          3  Sears for that.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 Next we're going to hear, we're going

          6  now out of the panels to non-panel general public

          7  time. I'm just going to call folks up in groups.

          8  We're going to go con pro con pro, et cetera, et

          9  cetera. Harold Kramer; Joe Gillespi, Dan Tuberty, I

         10  think, I'm sorry if I can't -- it's Brooklyn Queens

         11  Restaurant Association. And Richard Christi. Are

         12  those four folks here?

         13                 Okay, they'll be followed by Dr.

         14  Cheryl Anthony, Richard Craig, Winnie Fung, and Joe

         15  Valeri. If those folks could be on deck to follow

         16  these folks.

         17                 Do you know if the other two folks

         18  are -- okay, great, they're coming around. Sorry.

         19                 Whose ever there should fill --

         20  great, you're all there. Go right ahead.

         21                 MR. CHRISTIE: Good afternoon. My name

         22  is Richard Christie, I'm the president of the

         23  Brooklyn Queens Restaurant Association.

         24                 It seems to me that when you are

         25  proposing new laws they should be for all of the
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          2  people all of the time, and that includes the Mayor.

          3                 Mr. Mayor, you should be setting an

          4  example by practicing what you preach at a minimum.

          5  Instead, according to a Daily News article, which I

          6  enclosed a copy for your review, you just recently

          7  went to dinner to Uncle Jack's Steak House and dined

          8  on the second floor which is the smoking section.

          9  Why would you subject yourself and your company, as

         10  well as your security team, to the exposure that you

         11  are so vehemently against? Or is it politics as

         12  usual, enforcement by selection, or better known --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Can I interrupt

         14  you for one second, sir?

         15                 Are you Reverend -- no, you're on the

         16  next panel. No, you're on this panel, Reverend

         17  Cheryl wasn't on the panel. So, thank you. I didn't

         18  want to assume you weren't, Reverend Cheryl.

         19                 Go right ahead. I think I lost -- let

         20  me reset it. Okay, go ahead.

         21                 MR. CHRISTIE: Or is it politics as

         22  usual, enforcement by selection or better known as

         23  don't do what I do, do what I say?

         24                 Where is the concern for the help,

         25  your staff and yourself? Obviously you weren't
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          2  worried about anyone breathing in secondhand smoke

          3  that day.

          4                 It is interesting to note that the

          5  constant comparison to California since their ban

          6  went into effect, there are those who would like you

          7  to believe that it has not hurt their business. They

          8  would further like you to believe that the

          9  restaurant industry has increased during the first

         10  three years of the ban.

         11                 Actually, they are correct. However,

         12  these people left out some small details. What they

         13  didn't tell you is they took a survey of restaurants

         14  after three years of the ban, and for the first time

         15  they included the fastfood establishment, like

         16  McDonalds, Burger King and so forth. They also don't

         17  tell you after the first three years liquor license

         18  establishees have actually decreased by

         19  approximately 1,000 licensees. Almost every

         20  restaurant and bar has an outside patio which is

         21  enjoyed by almost 12 months of the year of very

         22  pleasant weather so customers can go out on the

         23  patio and have a smoke if they so choose, as outdoor

         24  patios are exempt from the ban in California but not

         25  from the proposed ban in New York.
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          2                 Now in information and belief it is

          3  our understanding there's presently consideration

          4  being given to exempting cigar bars, private clubs

          5  and owner operated family establishment from the

          6  smoking ban in New York.

          7                 Whatever happened to concern of all

          8  of the people for New York City? No, this is not an

          9  approach of misery loves company. This is a case of

         10  survival. Has anyone taken the time to consider that

         11  by exempting cigar bars, private clubs and

         12  family-owned premises that you are chasing customers

         13  from licensed premises who are presently paying much

         14  higher taxes than private clubs are not subjected

         15  to.

         16                 If there truly is a concern for

         17  everyone, I am sure we can work, come to a workable

         18  solution that everyone can live with.

         19                 I sincerely hope you take this in

         20  consideration before you vote to put many taxpaying

         21  members out of business, as well as our taxpaying

         22  employees out of work and on the welfare lines. To

         23  those of you who take the time to really listen and

         24  hear our concerns, I thank you. God bless you.

         25                 Please review the enclosed Indian
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          2  Reservation ad and evaluate how much more of our

          3  taxes are going right out the window.

          4                 I further sent a letter to each and

          5  every Council Member. I am enclosing a list of

          6  on-premise licenses within your district, which

          7  allow smoking. This will establish a record so that

          8  you know due to this ban on smoking what jobs are

          9  lost within your district. We predict that over the

         10  next 12 to 36 months, in excess of 30 percent of

         11  these licenses will lose their business if you vote

         12  to ban smoking.

         13                 Unlike California, we are

         14  establishing a clear and unambiguous record as to

         15  the true economic impact of this ban. On the next

         16  three anniversaries of the enactment of the smoking

         17  ban, I will communicate to you those licensees on

         18  this list which are no longer in business.

         19                 I am doing this for two reasons. One,

         20  to maintain a database for the country to know the

         21  effect of when government over-regulates business,

         22  and two, for you to personally know how many of our

         23  employees have faced economic death.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 MR. KRAMER: Good afternoon,
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          2  everybody. My name is Harold Kramer, and along with

          3  my wife Ria, we run and own the Raven Bar on 194

          4  Avenue A in Manhattan.

          5                 Before I speak, I just wanted to wish

          6  everybody a happy holiday. It is the holiday season

          7  and we're all New Yorkers here and I think everybody

          8  here should just wish each other a happy holiday.

          9                 That being said I'd like to address

         10  what a quality of life disaster Intro. 256 is going

         11  to be.

         12                 My bar is located on East 12th

         13  Street, on Avenue A, and between East 12th Street

         14  and East 14th Street on Avenue A there are no less

         15  than 14 bars and restaurants that are fully licensed

         16  to sell liquor. I'm going to read the names of these

         17  places. There's The Cock, capacity 150; the Raven,

         18  capacity 75; Korova Milk Bar, 175; Parlay, capacity

         19  200; Il Covo Dell'est, capacity 75; Oggi, capacity

         20  50; Forbidden City, capacity 125; Casanova, capacity

         21  75; Planet Rose, capacity 75; Phoenix, capacity 100;

         22  Keybar, capacity 150; the Love, Hope, Unity Social

         23  Club, capacity 60; Totem, capacity 75; and the Old

         24  Devil Moon, capacity 50. If you add all these

         25  capacities up, you get 1,335, and mind you, this is
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          2  just a short two-block stretch. It takes less than

          3  two minutes to walk between 12th Street and 14th

          4  Street. Avenue A stretches all the way from Houston

          5  Street to 14th Street, and there are many, many more

          6  licensed establishments along Avenue A. Avenue A is

          7  just one of many busy streets in the East Village,

          8  and the East Village is just one of many busy

          9  neighborhoods throughout New York City. All these

         10  neighborhoods are residential. New Yorkers live

         11  side-by-side and above these establishments. I know

         12  that 90 percent of my patrons smoke and it doesn't

         13  take a rocket scientist to do the math here, if

         14  Intro. 256 passes, the streets of these

         15  neighborhoods will be choked with people grabbing a

         16  smoke. It happens in Midtown with office workers,

         17  there's no reason to believe it won't happen with

         18  bar patrons who have been out drinking, and it won't

         19  be long before your offices are fluttered with calls

         20  from angry voters demanding to know why this bill

         21  was passed.

         22                 I just want to draw everyone's

         23  attention to that quote up there from Abraham

         24  Lincoln, "A government of the people, by the people

         25  and for the people." The people have never had a
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          2  chance to speak out or vote on Intro. 256. The

          3  Mayor, when he campaigned, never mentioned this in

          4  his campaign, never campaigned on this issue, and I

          5  think a lot of small business owners who voted for

          6  him, probably wouldn't have voted for him if they

          7  knew that he was in favor of such a ban.

          8                 Again, I want to wish everybody a

          9  happy holiday, and Raven is conducting a toy drive,

         10  so if you want to contribute toys, come see me

         11  later.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON SEARS: Thank you

         13  very much.

         14                 The next speaker is Joe Gillespe.

         15                 MS. GILLESPE: Good afternoon,

         16  Councilwoman Sears, Councilman Stewart. I wish to

         17  thank you both for at least having the courtesy to

         18  stay to listen to us.

         19                 I'm still wondering why I'm here,

         20  Councilwoman. We spoke yesterday, and you said to

         21  me, come on down, we will listen to you, people

         22  still need to hear what you have to say.

         23                 There's not much evidence of that

         24  here today, especially when we look at some of the

         25  proposed amendments in 256-A, to the tavern, small
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          2  bar, neighborhood bar industry in New York. There's

          3  nothing in it for us. We've been here, this is the

          4  third day we've been here on the same issue. We

          5  presented many really valid and compelling arguments

          6  as to why you needed to make certain exemptions for

          7  the neighborhood bars. Absolutely none of what we

          8  said has been taken into account, does not appear

          9  anywhere in the amendments as written in 256-A.

         10                 I was just going to focus on the

         11  three that relate directly to our business. Number

         12  one, the mom and pop stores, where there are no

         13  employees. There are no businesses in New York that

         14  meet that criteria. You might as well talk about

         15  putting in exemptions for Santa Claus and the tooth

         16  ferry, if you're going to be giving exemptions to

         17  fictional characters.

         18                 And the smoking room. Straight way,

         19  why it's even in there? No small business can afford

         20  it. I had a sickening display of the Mayor on TV the

         21  other day gloating about how he realized that the

         22  neighborhood bars, the small, could not possibly

         23  afford to put this room. He said the most basic

         24  ventilation system that would meet the requirements

         25  would be at least 20 to 30,000 dollars. Once again,
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          2  only his rich buddies from the upper east side can

          3  afford that. We can't do that in the neighborhoods.

          4                 The third part of this relates to

          5  cigar bars. I think you need to rename the amendment

          6  the Quinn, Miller, Bloomberg Big Business Amendment.

          7                 What you have done, you want to give

          8  seven cigar bars owned by tobacco companies in

          9  Manhattan the, basically if you like to call it the

         10  franchise for smoking in the City of New York. If I

         11  want to go have a beer and a cigarette, instead of

         12  going to any one of the 30,000 establishments that

         13  are currently there, we're now restricted to these

         14  seven.

         15                 You have not only given them the

         16  franchise, but you're writing this in such a way

         17  that you're giving them a lifetime monopoly that

         18  you'll not allow anybody else to open up and compete

         19  with them.

         20                 As Councilwoman Clarke said today,

         21  that is elitest and it is downright unAmerican. I

         22  think the Speaker, the Chairwoman of this Committee

         23  and the Mayor should be ashamed of themselves for

         24  even having this on the table.

         25                 That's all I have to say.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Let me just reset

          3  the clock. Go ahead.

          4                 MR. TUBRIDY: My name is Dan Tubridy.

          5  I own Pier 92 in Rockaway Beach. I have been in this

          6  business since 1976. I've been a licensee since

          7  1973.

          8                 I want to talk about the ship that we

          9  are all on, and one of the key ingredients of the

         10  ship that we are sailing together for it to be safe

         11  is integrity. And I now have to question listening

         12  today, I didn't come with prepared remarks, the

         13  Commissioner of Health, when he talks about numbers,

         14  he spoke about the system, the air filtration, I

         15  don't have one or fan or anything, costing about

         16  $200. Now, we're not allowed to laugh in this

         17  Chamber but I really want to appeal to the Council

         18  that is here, to have a Maytag dishwasher repairman

         19  show up at your house costs $200. Anybody walking

         20  into our store cost 100 to $200, his number is so

         21  far off to be nothing but deliberate.

         22                 To say that there are 400,000 people

         23  in our business that are going to die potentially of

         24  secondhand smoke is, again, such an absurdity. We

         25  heard from Chuck Hunt 140, we heard from Mr. Bookman
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          2  30,000. What I'm trying to say to the Council is

          3  that when all of these numbers. I've met with a

          4  number of Councilmen over the last couple of days,

          5  and each one I said to, you know, in order for 1,000

          6  people to die per year, I guess there's something

          7  you don't know in the outer boroughs. In the outer

          8  boroughs we came up with a list. You have it now,

          9  Richie Christie, our President, presented it to you.

         10  There are 1,100 smoking bars and restaurants, 1,100

         11  in the whole City, 1,100 in the four boroughs. I'm

         12  not talking Manhattan, in the four boroughs, 1,100.

         13  You have their names and addresses. You also have

         14  the names and addresses in our survey of those that

         15  are no smoking. Far more than that. Plus there are

         16  thousands that don't have licenses that can have

         17  smoking.

         18                 So, the choices of smoke-free are

         19  overwhelming. What we are here to try to say to you,

         20  when you heard these numbers of 1,000, and I told

         21  this to the Councilman that I met with, they all

         22  laughed because they knew it wasn't true. They knew

         23  this was a lie.

         24                 What is our solution? Well, on this

         25  ship of life, where Mayor Bloomberg is our captain,
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          2  he has offered a lifeboat to the cigar bars. They

          3  got in. He has offered a lifeboat to the KSCs and

          4  the Knights of Columbuses and the American Legions,

          5  and they got in. He has offered a dingy to the one

          6  or two owner occupied Archie bars in New York City,

          7  and they got in. What we're asking for is a lifeboat

          8  because we're on the Titanic.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I don't believe

         10  there are any questions for this panel. Thank you.

         11                 MR. CHRISTIE: Madam Chairperson,

         12  could I ask a question?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: We actually don't

         14  take questions from the panel.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 Reverend Dr. Cheryl Anthony; Richard

         17  Craig from the American Heart Association. I'm not

         18  sure I got that last name right. Winnie Fung, from

         19  Asian Americans for Equality. Joe Valeri.

         20                 That panel will be followed by

         21  separate panel after this panel, Charles Wolf, Jim

         22  Giannone from Legends Bar, Joel Sherman and Joseph

         23  Dobrian.

         24                 And as this panel settles in we're

         25  going to hear from the Speaker of the City Council,

                                                            159

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  Speaker Gifford Miller.

          3                 SPEAKER MILLER: I just wanted to drop

          4  by, Madam Chair, though not a member of the

          5  Committee, to compliment you on the process that has

          6  brought us to this point. This has been months of

          7  the deliberation, hours and hours and hours of

          8  testimony, passionate on every side of this issue.

          9  And I want to begin by complimenting you, from when

         10  I've been here and from everything I've heard

         11  actually from people on both sides of this issue,

         12  you've run these hearings with fairness, with

         13  reason, and giving everybody an opportunity to have

         14  their say, and I wanted to compliment you on that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         16                 SPEAKER MILLER: I believe in the end

         17  the process has brought us to a stronger point, I

         18  believe that this legislation is more focused on its

         19  primary goal, which is protecting employees' health

         20  and making sure that people don't have to choose

         21  between their health and their job, and that's what

         22  I think each of the amendments is aimed at, from the

         23  smaller owner operated bars where they don't have

         24  employees, to the cigar bars, which would just go

         25  out of business if they were not given some kind of
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          2  accommodation, and there would be no choice between

          3  jobs and health, there would just be no job, to the

          4  separate smoking rooms which while are designed for

          5  the purpose of being as safe as possible, both to

          6  those that are in them and those who are outside

          7  them, make clear that the intention is not to punish

          8  smokers or to those businesses that would like to

          9  accommodate the needs of smokers, but the intention

         10  is to protect employees from having to choose

         11  between their health and their jobs.

         12                 So, I want to compliment you, I want

         13  to compliment all of the members of the Committee

         14  who have spent many hours sitting here listening to

         15  testimony, who come -- we all come from different

         16  points of view on this particular matter, and that's

         17  what a legislature is about, it's about listening,

         18  it's about deliberating, it's about trying to

         19  respond and in the end coming up with the best piece

         20  of legislation possible.

         21                 I think that's what has been done to

         22  this point, and I wanted to compliment you and all

         23  the members of the Council, who are both for and

         24  against, and also the members of the public who have

         25  turned out here and testified and who bring their
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          2  viewpoint forward and say that this is a matter that

          3  the Council takes extremely seriously. It's not the

          4  only matter that the Council takes seriously, but it

          5  is a matter that the Council takes very seriously

          6  and we certainly will be -- we have listened, we

          7  will continue to listen and will continue to watch

          8  the situation to make sure that we do what's

          9  necessary to protect employees and the health of

         10  this City of New York, but try to address whatever

         11  quality of life or economic concerns as a result of

         12  this legislation.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 Who would ever like to begin? Why

         16  don't you begin, Reverend Cheryl. You became a

         17  slight focus of the last panel.

         18                 REVEREND ANTHONY: Thank you. First

         19  let me thank and applaud Speaker Gifford Miller for

         20  his leadership of the City Council, and let me begin

         21  by also thanking New York City Council Committee on

         22  Health under the leadership of Councilwoman

         23  Christine Quinn for convening this very important

         24  public hearing on protecting New Yorkers from

         25  secondhand smoke in the workplace, because all New
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          2  York City workers deserve a safe, healthy,

          3  smoke-free work environment.

          4                 My name is Reverend Dr. Cheryl

          5  Anthony, and I am the Pastor of Judah International

          6  Christian Center, which is a multi-faceted

          7  inner-city ministry which implores a holistic

          8  approach to serving people.

          9                 I also serve as the Chair of Central

         10  Brooklyn Churches, a faith-based organization

         11  empowering Brooklyn residents through developing

         12  leadership and taking strategic action to build

         13  community power.

         14                 Central Brooklyn Churches is an

         15  organization of 25 churches with a combined

         16  membership totaling over 40,000 families within the

         17  Bed Stuy, Bushwick, Crown Heights, Fort Green and

         18  Williamsburg area.

         19                 As a firm believer of ministering to

         20  the needs of the total person, I am here today to

         21  urge you to pass the strongest form of the Smoke

         22  Free Workplace Act to protect all workers from

         23  secondhand smoke.

         24                 The political and policy implications

         25  around secondhand smoke in the workplace have been
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          2  well addressed but now it's time to regard this

          3  issue as a moral imperative.

          4                 Secondhand smoke in the workplace is

          5  an environmental injustice that is above and beyond

          6  politics, because no one should be forced to breathe

          7  secondhand smoke, a poison known to cause death, in

          8  order to keep their job.

          9                 In light of this fact, now is the

         10  time to adopt and implement a public policy to

         11  equally protect all workers from secondhand smoke.

         12                 It is statistically alarming that

         13  secondhand smoke kills more than 40,000 non-smokers

         14  nationwide including 1,000 New York City community

         15  workers. It is especially a problem in the community

         16  we at Judah International Christian Center and the

         17  Central Brooklyn Churches serve, since

         18  African-Americans and Latinos have significantly

         19  higher rates of mortality and illnesses caused by

         20  smoking and secondhand smoke, including lung cancer

         21  and heart disease.

         22                 In fact, according to the Surgeon

         23  General's report, our tobacco use among racial and

         24  ethnic groups, African Americans are the least

         25  likely to work in a completely smoke-free workplace.
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          2                 This is also a problem for the most

          3  vulnerable workers, immigrants, and those without

          4  economic security.

          5                 The less powerful a worker is, the

          6  more we need to mandate public policies on their

          7  side to help protect their rights.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You need to sum

          9  up, Reverend.

         10                 REVEREND ANTHONY: I just strongly

         11  urge you to adopt this Smoke Free Workplace Act.

         12  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         14                 MS. FUNG: Good afternoon. My name is

         15  Winnie Fung and I am here on behalf of Asian

         16  Americans for Equality, a Chinatown-based community

         17  development organization with roots in the community

         18  since 1974.

         19                 I am pleased to be here to speak in

         20  favor of New York City Council bill Intro. No. 256,

         21  the Smoke-free Workplace Act of 2002, which would

         22  restrict smoking in restaurants and bars. This Act

         23  will go far in protecting the health of all workers,

         24  part of a national and international trend that

         25  recognizes the effects of secondhand smoke. Hundreds
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          2  of localities already have such provisions on the

          3  books and New York City should not lag behind. We

          4  also believe increasing the penalty for violations

          5  will serve as a deterrent to non-complying

          6  establishments.

          7                 Since it inception (sic) 28 years

          8  ago, AAFE has been on the forefront of providing

          9  service to improve the lives of low-income immigrant

         10  and minority communities through a comprehensive

         11  array of community development and social assistance

         12  access programs.

         13                 As part of our strategy on enhancing

         14  the overall well-being of our community, we believe

         15  that addressing the health concerns of our families

         16  and children is very crucial.

         17                 400,000 non-smoking New Yorkers who

         18  currently work in smoking establishments will be

         19  protected by this law. The devastating effects of

         20  smoking and secondhand smoke have taken its toll on

         21  many New Yorkers with risk of cancer, lung disease

         22  and heart diseases.

         23                 Access to health care is at such a

         24  premium in our country with so many uninsured and

         25  underinsured. This initiative would alleviate some
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          2  of the burden of our city's health care system and

          3  money can be targeted toward preventive health care.

          4                 Many of our own clients work in these

          5  environments where smoking is prevalent and would be

          6  direct beneficiaries to this new legislation. So, we

          7  ask you to highly consider the long-term impacts of

          8  this initiative and keep in mind the importance of

          9  developing a healthier community for the future.

         10                 Again, thank you for this opportunity

         11  to speak today. Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         13                 Good afternoon, Chairwoman Quinn and

         14  members of the Health Committee. My name is Richard

         15  Czaja, and I'm Chairman of the Board of the American

         16  Heart Association in New York City, and I'm

         17  Executive Vice President and General Counsel of Star

         18  Real Estate.

         19                 I would like to thank you for this

         20  opportunity to speak to you today on behalf of the

         21  American Heart Association to support Intro. 256-A.

         22                 The American Heart Association is a

         23  not-for-profit voluntary health organization funded

         24  by private contribution. Our mission is to reduce

         25  disability and death from cardiovascular disease and
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          2  stroke.

          3                 One in every five deaths due to heart

          4  disease is attributed to tobacco smoke, and

          5  breathing other people's cigarette smoke makes

          6  non-smokers 82 percent more likely to suffer a

          7  stroke.

          8                 Secondhand smoke has long been

          9  associated with heart disease because tobacco

         10  smoke's overall effect on the cardiovascular system.

         11  Studies have shown that the inhalation of tobacco

         12  smoke causes blood vessels to contract, limits blood

         13  flow throughout the body, reduces a person's oxygen

         14  supply, damages arteries, lowers good cholesterol

         15  and increases the risk of bloodclots.

         16                 In New York City alone approximately

         17  1,000 lives are claimed by exposure to secondhand

         18  smoke.

         19                 Wait staff, cooks and bartenders have

         20  the highest level of exposure to secondhand smoke of

         21  any occupational group. Restaurant employees are

         22  exposed to levels of secondhand smoke that are two

         23  times higher than people who work in offices.

         24                 Bartenders are at an even greater

         25  risk, with exposure levels four to six times higher.
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          2                 In an eight-hour shift bartenders

          3  inhale the same amount of disease-causing chemicals

          4  from secondhand smoke, as if they smoke more than

          5  half a pack of cigarettes themselves.

          6                 Even occasional exposure to

          7  secondhand smoke increases the risk of developing

          8  heart disease by 58 percent.

          9                 The overwhelming majority of people

         10  in New York City have consistently reported in

         11  surveys that they do not like to breathe smoke from

         12  other people's cigarettes.

         13                 In New York City where eight out of

         14  ten adults do not smoke, market research shows that

         15  by a two to one margin people would eat out more

         16  often if they could eat in a smoke-free environment.

         17                 The American Heart Association is

         18  very pleased with your efforts to amend the

         19  amendments that have been made to the Smoke Free Air

         20  Act of 2002 and support it wholeheartedly.

         21                 Thank you for your time and your

         22  effort.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. It's

         24  kind of counter-intuitive, if the light is off, the

         25  mic is on.
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          2                 MR. VALERI: Oh, there we go. Okay.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

          4                 MR. VALERI: Madam Chair, Ms.

          5  Christine Quinn, and Councilwoman Ms. Helen Sears,

          6  Councilman Mr. Stewart, thank you for staying to

          7  hear the testimony of the common man.

          8                 My name is Joe Valeri. I was until I

          9  recently chose to quit my job at a smoke-filled

         10  dualing piano bar, a working musician.

         11                 Surely you have heard from countless

         12  other bartenders, wait staff and performers all

         13  testifying to the fact that secondhand cigarette

         14  smoke is detrimental to their health and well-being,

         15  therefore, I will not waste precious time by giving

         16  what for certain would be yet another exhaustive

         17  personal account of the symptoms of dis-ease that

         18  manifest as a result of exposure to tobacco fumes.

         19  Rather, please allow me to make a case in favor of

         20  signing the proposal in question into law.

         21                 It is quite simply the right of every

         22  adult in civilized modern society to exercise his or

         23  her personal freedoms, so long as doing so does not

         24  interfere with another person's right to exercise

         25  their personal freedoms. A smoker, unfortunately,
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          2  has the right to choose to smoke. A non-smoker

          3  conversely has the right to choose not to smoke.

          4  However, when the smoker begins to smoke in a public

          5  space, the non-smoker's right to choose not to smoke

          6  has been instantly and arbitrarily revoked. Consider

          7  in contrast the public consumption of alcohol

          8  arguably just as detrimental as the inhalation of

          9  tobacco smoke. Are all bar workers and patrons made

         10  to swallow liquor at the same rate and the same

         11  amount as an obvious drinker in attendance? Those

         12  opposed to this bill claim it is tantamount to

         13  forcing the ideals of a select few onto the rest of

         14  the population. This is in effect exactly what has

         15  been allowed to occur in bars and restaurants for

         16  far too long.

         17                 We could not imagine smoking in

         18  theaters, airplanes, or Council Chambers, why should

         19  a bar be any different? Should the president

         20  continue to dictate what is permissible in the 21st

         21  Century?  Smokers opposed to this ban who see

         22  nothing wrong with smoking in the presence of others

         23  who do not share their viewpoint are like children

         24  who have been previously allowed to misbehave and

         25  now facing the prospect of having to modify their
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          2  behavior are understandably upset, inevitably they

          3  will proclaim that they are not children, they are

          4  adults and human beings and deserve to be treated as

          5  such. I agree, they are adults, and consequently it

          6  is their duty to behave in an accountable,

          7  responsible and considerate manner.

          8                 Non-smokers are also adults and human

          9  beings and deserve to be treated as such. The

         10  government is bound to ensure that the liberties and

         11  well-being of its citizens is safeguarded, that a

         12  law is required to guarantee this is sad indeed and

         13  a testament to the power of nicotine addiction.

         14                 In an effort to make a personal

         15  attack and distract us from the real issues the

         16  opposition has labeled the pro side "health Nazis,"

         17  however, smokers will most certainly and sadly be

         18  free to continue to smoke, the difference is that

         19  non-smokers will now be free to not smoke.

         20  Hospitality industry against the ban? Please tell

         21  me, what is hospitable about making some people

         22  comfortable by placing others in harm's way.

         23                 At the initial hearing, a gentleman

         24  from the hotel industry argued against the proposal.

         25  I could appreciate his concern that revenues may be
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          2  lost, although I believe that the opposite will be

          3  the case. Even if his fears were realized, should

          4  some suffer and die so that others can make money?

          5                 I just have a few more lines.

          6                 You stated that if ever there was a

          7  time to pass this legislation it is not now. I

          8  agree. The time is not now, the time is long passed.

          9  Please sign this bill into law as soon as possible

         10  and without any loopholes or exceptions based on

         11  square footage or seating capacity. In the name of

         12  the right of an individual to ensure his own

         13  well-being, we are counting on you to do the right

         14  thing.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: We have a question

         17  from Council Member Stewart.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I don't

         19  really have a question, I just have -- I was amazed

         20  in the way Mr. Joe Valeri put his testimony. It's so

         21  moving, it makes me feel that all the ideas that I

         22  had about giving exceptions, that we shouldn't even

         23  allow that, because we are doing things to make our

         24  workers safe, and yet, we're still being criticized.

         25  And in other industries we will be praised, I think
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          2  we should be praised in trying to make the workers

          3  safe in this environment whereby even if we say that

          4  they should have less smokers, even if they're

          5  saying that there should be less people smoking and

          6  we're putting taxes on cigarettes, et cetera,

          7  there's more to it than that. We need to keep our

          8  workers free from these health hazards. And I

          9  applaud you for putting it in such a moving fashion,

         10  and I would like to keep this, just to keep reading

         11  it, to keep my emotions up about this bill.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 MR. VALERI: Thank you for staying and

         14  listening to our testimonies.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you, Council

         16  Member Stewart.

         17                 Thank you. We're next going to hear

         18  from Charles Wolf, Jim Giannone, Joel Sherman and

         19  Joseph Dobrian, and they will be followed by Joel

         20  Shafro, Coalition for a Smoke Free City; Anita

         21  Thacher; Peter Chen of NYU Medical School; and

         22  Albert Hsu, the Medical Society of the State of New

         23  York.

         24                 Before this panel starts, I just want

         25  to apologize, Charles, for the scheduling problem
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          2  the other day, but the staff did report back to me

          3  what you and the folks you brought with you

          4  explained.

          5                 Charles actually isn't a constituent

          6  but I think of him as one because he's the head of a

          7  block association, part of which is in my district

          8  and comes to enough meetings that I asked him to.

          9                 MR. WOLF: I live across the street

         10  from your district.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: There you go. Oh,

         12  I didn't know you were right across the street.

         13  Okay.

         14                 So, Charles gets to go first. Go

         15  ahead.

         16                 MR. WOLF: Thank you. Thank you,

         17  Council Member Quinn, and the remaining Committee

         18  Chairmen who have chosen to stay.

         19                 I am the presiding officer of the

         20  Bleaker Area Merchants and Residents Association. I

         21  think we're the only organization, neighborhood

         22  organization in the City that represents both

         23  merchants and residents.

         24                 The modifications that are made to

         25  this bill are a red herring. They do nothing to
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          2  address the serious problem.

          3                 First of all, let me say I am not a

          4  smoker. I do not like the smell of smoke on my

          5  clothes, and I think it would be wonderful if we

          6  could get smoking to stop. But that's not the

          7  reality of the situation. I have renamed this law

          8  "the smokers' relocation law of 2002," because that

          9  is what will happen. It will relocate the smokers.

         10  Passage of this bill will not make them stop. That's

         11  the problem. I would love to see this bill go into

         12  effect. I would love to be able to go anywhere I

         13  want to without smoke, I don't like it, I don't even

         14  like walking behind a person on the sidewalk that's

         15  carrying a cigarette, but living on Bleeker Street,

         16  and Bleeker Street extends and you got Second

         17  Avenue, you got Avenue A, you got all of these

         18  places, you have got to take a look at the issue of

         19  enforcement, you have got to ask yourself where are

         20  these smokers going to smoke? You have to take a

         21  look at the population of people who are going to

         22  the bars right now, and you have to come up with

         23  another alternative of which I have some

         24  suggestions. Some other alternative to make this

         25  thing work without causing economic havoc, and

